
 

 

32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan 48025

 ______      

  F: (248) 626-0538         (248) 626-9666 

www.franklin.mi.us  
 

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, February 14, 2022, 7:00 P.M. 

Meeting location at the Franklin Community Church  

26425 Wellington Road, Franklin, Michigan 48025 

A G E N D A 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

IV. MINUTES: 

A.        Regular Meeting of December 13, 2021 

B.        Special Meeting of December 16, 2021 

V. APPOINTMENT OF VILLAGE TRUSTEE 

A.       Consider Proclamation for Village Council President Pro-Tem Brain Gordon 

B.       Consider Appointment of Village Trustee 

VI. PUBLIC REQUESTS AND COMMENTS 

VII. REPORTS OF VILLAGE OFFICERS AND AGENTS 

A.        Police Report 

B.        Fire Report 

C.        Treasurer Report 

VIII. SUBMISSION OF CURRENT BILLS 

IX. SPECIAL REPORTS 

A.     President’s Report 

B.     Council Report 

C.     Administrator Report 

D.     Main Street Franklin Report                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

E.     Planning Commission Report 

X. PUBLIC HEARING  

A. Oakland County Parks and Recreation Trailways Grant Application (Apple Tree to Irving Trail) 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consider Appointment of Village Clerk  

B. Consider Appointment of the Franklin-Bingham Farms Fire Department Liaison 

C. Consider Appointment of Legal Committee Member 

D. Consider Purchase of New Axon Body Cameras for the Franklin-Bingham Farms Police Department  

E. Consider Proclamation for Sergeant Mark Dyjewski 

F. Consider Resolution for the Oakland County Parks and Recreation Trailways Grant Application (Apple Tree to 

Irving Trail) 

G. Review Audit Report FY 2020-2021 

H. Consider Resolution for Budget Amendments Fiscal Year 2021-2022 

I. Consider Civic Event Permit for Bring your Own Dog on May 15th, 2022  

J. Consider Proposal from Hubbell, Roth, and Clark for 2021-2022 Annual Storm Sewer Maintenance Program  

K. Consider Proposal from Hubbell, Roth, and Clark for the Carol Street Drian Investigation  

XII.        CLOSED SESSION 

A.     Consider Convening to a Closed Session to Discuss Negotiation Strategy Relating to a Collective Bargaining 

Agreements  

XIII.        CONTRACT 

A.    Consider the POAM and COAM Contracts with the Village of Franklin. 

B.    Consider Act 88 - Reciprocal Retirement Act 

XIV.      ADJOURNMENT  

 

Posted: February 11, 2022                                                                                    Heather Mydloski | Village Clerk 

 
POSTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PUBLIC ACT 267 (OPEN MEETINGS ACT) 

The Village of Franklin will provide necessary, reasonable auxiliary aids and services to individuals with disabilities requiring such services.  All 
requests must be made to the Village Clerk at least five (5) business days before a meeting.  Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or 

services should contact the Village in writing at 32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, MI 48025 or by calling the Clerk’s Office, at 248-626-9666. 

http://www.franklin.mi.us/


 

 

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, December 13, 2021, at 7:00 PM 
Village of Franklin Hall (Broughton House), 32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, MI 48025 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by President Bill Lamott, at 7:00 P.M.  
 

II. ROLL CALL 

 
Present:           Brian Gordon, Kathy Erlich, Mark Hanke, Pam Hansen, Ed Saenz, Mike Seltzer 

and Bill Lamott  
 

Absent:            None 
 
Also Present: Dan Roberts, Police Chief; Tony Averbuch, Fire Chief; Roger Fraser, Village  

 Administrator, Susan Goldstrom, Assistant Administrator; Meg Schubert, Economic 
Development Director/MSF; Peter Gojcaj Village Attorney; Heather Mydloski, Village 
Clerk, and Ed Zmich of Hubbell, Roth, and Clark 

 
III. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

Motion by Seltzer, seconded by Saenz to adopt the Agenda as amended.  

AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  
 

IV. MINUTES 
 

 
A. Regular Meeting of November 08, 2021 

 
Motion by Seltzer, seconded by Saenz to adopt the Minutes for the Regular Meeting of 
November 08, 2021, as presented.  
 

AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried. 
 
 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 2 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

V. PUBLIC REQUESTS AND COMMENTS 
 

Public Comments were opened by President Bill Lamott at 7:01 PM. 
 

Peter Halick – 26177 Thirteen Mile  

• Spoke of his involvement with the Pickering Farm Preservation effort. 

• Seltzer and Gordon asked what the Council could do to support this effort, he responded to 
approve the Resolution within this agenda.  

 
Public Comments were closed by President Bill Lamott at 7:09PM. 

 
VI. REPORTS OF VILLAGE OFFICERS AND AGENTS 

 
A. Police Report 

 
Dan Roberts, Police Chief 

• Reviewed Submitted Report. 

• A Burglary was reported in the submitted report in a residential area, however it was an 
open, detached garage that was under construction and a chain saw was stolen as a result.  

• Last week, three (3) FBFPD Officers were sent immediately to Oxford High School to assist 
during the tragic shooting that took place. Roberts informed the Council of the Officers 
fearless and selfless efforts to support our community and local first responders.  

• Rose Murdock has been hired as the new Police Clerk and is familiar with Police work as 
she has served for nearly thirty (30) years as a dispatcher, most recently at Bloomfield 
Township.  

• A new Officer has been selected to replace Sgt. Mark Dyjewski. The new hire is currently 
employed with a local department as a part-time Officer. FBFPD is currently processing his 
background investigation, upon its approval he will begin his employment with FBFPD.  

• Bingham Farms Village Manager and Clerk Ken Marten has been working with the 
department for Union Contract Negotiations. The FBFPD Contract expires on December 31, 
2021. 

• Traffic accidents are more than double over last year.  Even with a COVID year, this raises 
concern. Chief cautioned the public to remain careful and stay safe.  

 
B. Fire Report 

 
Tony Averbuch, Fire Chief 

• Reviewed Submitted Report. 

• Thanked the Village and DTE for their assistance with the recent storm.  

• Reminded residents that carbon monoxide is deadly and advised them to use caution when 
operating a generator.  

• Seltzer asked if the caution pertained to portable generators or whole house generators? 
Averbuch responded that both were an issue. He further stated that whole house 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 3 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

generators may not be vented properly or inadvertently blocked an incorrectly diverted 
causing the spread of CO in the residence.  

 
C. Treasurer Report 

 
Lance Vainik, Village Treasurer   

• Council reviewed Submitted Report. 
 

VII. SUBMISSION OF CURRENT BILLS 
 

Totals:  12-13-2021  
CATEGORY  SUB TOTALS  
General  $           86,417.53 

Major Streets  $             2,489.35 
Local Streets  $             3,715.04 

Police  $          65,551.27 
Garbage and Rubbish  $          29,983.23 
Building Dept.  $          19,378.91 

Library  $                        - 
Street Project  $        311,224.64 

Road Millage  $                        - 
Pressure Sewer  $                        - 

Tax Collection  $                        - 
Wastewater  $            9,176.93 
TOTALS  $      527,936.90 

 
Hansen requested verification for a check disbursement of $500.00 to Heather Mydloski LLC. 
Fraser directed the question to Mydloski. Mydloski stated that she was the Social Media 
Coordinator for the Franklin Bingham Farms Police Department.  
 
Hansen asked for clarification on the HRC as to whether this would be a reoccurring level of 
expense, or this is solely related to the drain flow mitigation by HRC. Fraser responded that HRC is 
working on around seven (7) individual projects currently and each one brought the cumulative 
total to the entry of around $27,000.00.  
 
Lamott asked Fraser to identify the Plante Moran charges. Lamott understood the estimate to be 
around $7,000.00 opposed to the $26,925.00 actual check disbursement. Fraser explained that it 
was imperative to receive an analysis of the Finance Department to ascertain the correct 
procedures and processes. Hansen asked Fraser how much it would cost to maintain Plante Moran 
for 2-3 hours monthly; Fraser estimates $500- $1000 a month moving forward.  
 
Gordon and Lamott requested budget reports to be published quarterly for full transparency.  
Gordon and Lamott both emphasized their commitment to remain transparent and stewards of the 
Village finances. 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 4 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

Lamott required additional information about the cameras installed by Vigilante. Fraser asked 
Roberts to speak to that. Roberts stated they were placed downtown for safety as they cameras 
could be utilized to monitor traffic for investigation purposes in the event of a burglary or the like.  
 
Hanke inquired of the Owen Tree Service expense. Fraser clarified Owen Tree Service was asked to 
investigate the black walnut tree the northwest corner of Wellington and Franklin Road that the 
Village has spent years protecting. Upon a comprehensive study, it was determined it should be 
removed, ultimately for resident safety.  

 
Motion by Seltzer seconded by Saenz to approve the Bills List as presented. 
 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  
 

VIII. SPECIAL REPORTS 
 

A. President’s Report 
 

President Lamott 
• Discussed Cell Phone Service in the Village. 

o Lamott, Hanke, Planning Commission (PC) Chairman David Goldberg and PC 
Commissioner Peter Halick would investigate the issue further. The PC had 
previously conducted a study on cell towers a few years ago, and current study 
would be prudent. The impact of 5G, cell tower concerns and WIFI bandwidth 
are among several topics on interest.  
 

a. Urban Deer Management Program Update  
i. Lamott and Fraser are continuing the attend, the monthly meetings 

in Farmington Hills to obtain answers and possible solutions.  
 

B. Council Report 
 

Trustee Gordon 
• Discussed the unusual pattern of the recent storms that devastated Kentucky.  He 

suggested we keep in close contact with DTE to ensure priority is given for the 
mitigation of storm damage within the Village in the future.  

• Erlich stated every resident received a $25.00 rebate for the interruption of their 
service during the pattern of storms this summer.  

• Hanke suggested inviting DTE to come to a meeting to keep the discussion going.  
 

C. Administrator Report 
 

 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 5 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

Roger Fraser, Village Administrator  
• The Village has solicited bids from a variety of contractors for the purchase of a whole 

house generator and they are not available for at least four (4) to six (6) months and the 
cost has now doubled.   

• Introduced Susan Goldstrom as the new Assistant Administrator. The Council welcomed 
her.  

a. Storm Sewer Maintenance Service Grant Update  
 

No update was given.  
 

D. Main Street Franklin Report 
 

Meg Schubert, MSF/Economic Development Director  
• Two (2) events in the downtown regional center: 

o Shop Small was well attended and there was positive merchant feedback.  
o Sip, Shop and Stroll was a record year, and the addition of the coffee cart was a 

huge hit.  
• Madeline’s French Patisserie had a soft open.  

▪ Hanke asked what could be done to help. He suggested a welcome in the 
Village Newsletter.  Schubert informed the Council that the owner is open to 
the idea but will wait until she is fully operational before requesting 
publication.  

• A small barn, owned by Les Gorback has been given face lift in the Village Center to 
enhance the aesthetic of our Village. Gorback has made an extensive effort to upgrade 
the barn and it is a welcome improvement. Lamott mentioned the small barn was 
originally an icehouse in the 1900’s, it is a valued piece of our history.  

• The Drake Center is now open. Cassius and Jacqueline Drake have opened a medical 
center to focus on trauma recovery.  

• Seltzer asked about Tangerine Wine.  
▪ They are looking to expand with grab and go food and additional wine 

tastings that will fill the current empty space.  
  

E. Planning Commission Report 
 

Chairman David Goldberg 
• The PC recommended approval for the second site plan revision for the Dental Office at 

32767 Franklin Road.  
o They are planning to convert the old barn to a live-work space and the gray 

workshop will be converted into a small retail space.  
o They have sufficient parking on the property. They are paving the parking lot and 

enhancing the landscaping  
o Seltzer asked if a there was a targeted retailer. Responding to Seltzer, Goldberg 

stated there were ideas circulated but nothing official.  
• Scheduled two (2) Public Hearings:  

• Minor Zoning Text Amendment changes:  



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 6 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

o Maximum Height of Building, particularly in the Commercial 
District.  

o Very minor correction to the Garden Fence Ordinance.  
• The Parking Space Layout Diagram in our Zoning Ordinance is nearly illegible, and the PC 

is currently working to update it accordingly.   
• Hansen asked Goldberg about the parking behind the buildings on the west side of 

Franklin Road was targeted for improvement, but it was never completed. She wanted to 
know if the Parking Space Layout Update will investigate the efficiency and the flow of 
traffic to improve that situation?  Goldberg clarified the issue has been addressed by the 
PC and they approved the design of traffic to flow from Evelyn Court and subsequent 
landscaping to be added to address the grading difference as well.   

• Gordon inquired of the usage by the vacant lots by the old Bank of America on Thirteen 
Mile and Birchway Drive. Goldberg stated the land divisions had been picked up but there 
is not to officially report.  

 
F. Diversity Equity & Inclusion Committee Report 

 
No one was present.  

 
IX. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A.  Community Development Block Grant (CBDG Plan Year 2022)  

 
Public Hearing was opened by President Bill Lamott at 7:56 PM.  
 
Chris Braun- Executive Director of NEXT 

• Thanked Council for their support of the NEXT program.   
• Informed the Council that the NEXT facility had to close for a brief period during the COVID-

19 pandemic. However, they continued to call members and check on them as well as 
provide transportation and Meals on Wheels.  

• When the state permitted them to, NEXT erected an outdoor tent to meet community needs.  
• The NEXT programs are continuing to thrive, and additional funds are desired for their 

expansion and continuation.  
• NEXT has 2,000 current members, however you do not need to be a member to utilize their 

services.  
• Gordon asked how many members are Franklin residents. Braun responded sixty (60.)  
• Gordon and Seltzer inquired of the number of Meals on Wheels utilized by Franklin 

residents. Braun responded four (4.)  
• Lamott and Saenz commended NEXT for their excellent community service. 
 

Hanke informed the Council that HAVEN had submitted a request for $2500.00 of the funds.  
 

Public Hearing was closed by President Bill Lamott at 8: 05 PM 
 

 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 7 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

X. UNFINISHED BUISNESS  
 
A. Bid Proposal for Snow Removal 

 
Fraser informed the Council that Johnson Landscaping was the only bid the Village received for 
Snow removal. He further mentioned that Johnson Landscaping needed a regular pay structure to 
ensure he will be able to pay his workers. A payment structure was outlined in his contract. Fraser 
and Gojcaj had reviewed the contract.  
 
Hansen asked how this new payment structure compared to his prior billing. Fraser did not have 
the numbers in front of him.  
 
Hansen was concerned for the defined standard for snow plowing. She implored the Council to 
consider if they were willing to accept the defined standards.  She emphasized that Jerry Johnson’s 
concerns needed to be met.  
 
Erlich clarified the snowplow standard was the 4th bullet point and 7th bullet point of the contract. 
 
Gordon inquired of Fraser as to how much the Village has paid Johnson Landscaping annually in 
the past.  
 
Hanke asked if salt services for the Franklin Community Church parking lot had always been in the 
contract. Lamott responded there was an agreement in place between the Village and the Church. 
Lamott reminded the Council that the Village uses the Church parking lot often and the church 
depends on the snow service as they have a tight budget. The agreement has therefore proven 
mutually beneficial. Hansen questioned if there was a current agreement in place, Fraser will 
substantiate.   

 
Motion by Hansen, seconded by Seltzer, to approve the Proposal for Snow Removal from 
Johnson Landscaping, expiring on November 14, 2022, as presented.  

 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  
 

 
XI. NEW BUSINESS  

A. Consider Proclamation Honoring Doreen Martin 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
WHEREAS Doreen A. Martin has served the Village of Franklin in the Administrative Offices 
since March of 2019, and  
 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 8 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

WHEREAS Doreen Martin has many years of work experience in Michigan local 
government and is a certified municipal clerk, and  
 
WHEREAS Doreen Martin, for those who work with her, is a virtual walking, talking library 
of information about regulations, procedures, and policies related to Michigan local 
government and the Village of Franklin, and 
 
WHEREAS Doreen was first hired by the Village as the Building Clerk, she also served as 
Deputy Village Clerk and, in November of 2020 was appointed Office Manager, and 
 
WHEREAS during her tenure with the Village Doreen Martin has many noteworthy 
accomplishments that include the following: 

- With innate leadership skills created an atmosphere of competence and concern 
for residents, welcoming them to the Village Offices and assuring their needs are 
addressed. 

- Developed an online payment system providing improved access for contractors 
using the Building Department and for residents and others making payments to 
the Village. 

- Developed an automated system using B.S.&A. software to properly and 
efficiently manage payments received. 

- Researched contemporary alternatives to the Village’s outdated phone system in 
the administrative offices and facilitated acquisition of a cost-effective 
replacement system. 

- Planned and organized a substantial effort to address out-of-date files and other 
waste in Village offices utilizing volunteers in a weekend effort to remove debris 
from the Village Hall. 

- Designed and implemented a cost-effective means of sending brief notices to 
Village addresses using a newly acquired electronic postage machine, and 

 
WHEREAS Doreen Martin has submitted her resignation from the Village of Franklin 
effective December 31, 2021, 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Franklin Village Board of Trustees hereby 
recognizes the outstanding contributions of Doreen Martin during her tenure with the 
Village and expresses profound gratitude for the time she has given to the Village of 
Franklin. 
 
Adopted by the Franklin Village Council this 13th day of December, 2021.   
 

Motion by Seltzer, seconded by Saenz, to approve the Proclamation Honoring Doreen 
Martin as presented.  
 
Lamott publicly thanked Martin for her excellent work and stated she will be missed.  

 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 9 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

 
Motion carried.  

 
B. Consider Community Development Block Grant (CDBG Plan Year 2022)  

 
Lamott asked Chris Braun- Executive Director of NEXT to define how other communities do it. She 
agreed the process of splitting the funds is indeed cumbersome.  
 
Fraser read his summitted memo to the Council.  

 
Motion by Seltzer, seconded by Gordon for HAVEN to receive $2500.00 and NEXT to 
receive $4500.00 of the $7,000.00 Allocation of Community Development Block Grant 
Funds for the Plan Year of 2022. 
 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  

 
Hansen suggested the Council to resolve to make the fund availability known to other entities in 
the community so that the funds can be accessed by a wider array of community needs.  
 
Motion by Hansen, seconded by Saenz, to approve a Resolution to Post a Public Notice on 
the Village website a month prior to the Public Hearing requirements, so that there is 
ample time for the Council to reach out to community entities and invite them to the 
Public Hearing.  

 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  
 

C. Consider Proposal from Hubbell, Roth, and Clark for 2021-2022 Annual 
Storm Sewer Maintenance Program 
 

Zmich reviewed his submitted bid report for a proposal submitted in August of this year.  
 
Zmich stated that the submitted proposal has become part of the two hundred thousand 
($200,000.00) Grant that the Village is in the process of acquiring from the Michigan Economic 
Development Corporation through the State of Michigan. This was the basis for the said grant 
that is in process. Zmich further stated that the Storm Sewer Maintenance Program and the 
Carol Street Drain Investigation project would both fall under the umbrella of the above-
mentioned grant.  
 
The Council agreed to wait until the grant was finalized so that the overall spend could be 
properly ascertained prior to the approval of the proposed bid.  



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 10 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

D. Consider Proposal from Hubbell, Roth, and Clark for Carol Street Drain 
Investigation  
 

Zmich reviewed his submitted bid report. The Request for Proposal (RFP) by invitation to 
vetted contractors has been sent out and two (2) bids were received, and they were solid bids 
with competitive pricing, specially in the current economic environment.  
 
Gordon and Seltzer asked Zmich to confirm that the grant would cover all the costs associated 
with the Carol Street Drain and the Storm Sewer Maintenance program with no cost to the 
Village, Zmich substantiated there would be no cost to the Village. Zmich further explained that 
the Village may incur costs upfront and request reimbursement when the grant funds are 
officially available. Zmich stated also that if the work exceeds the grant amount the Village will 
then be responsible for the difference.  
 
Fraser clarified there was a specific allocation made from the state legislature was to provide 
$200,000.00 to a Village with a population of 3000 and we happened to be the only Village that 
fit the grant description.  

 
Zmich implored the Council to continue reaching out to Village residents for their feedback so 
that the proper mitigation could be ascertained and then added to the project.   
 
Fraser cautioned the Council that he could not substantiate that the Village would indeed be 
reimbursed for $27,210.00 as it cannot be guaranteed at this juncture. Fraser further cautioned 
that the Village needed to proceed with the Carol Street Drain project, as it is a high priority, 
regardless of reimbursement as it is imperative to proceed with the project.  
 
Hansen expressed concerned that the work that was completed by Novak and Frause 
Engineering (NFE) may cause redundancy. Zmich responded to Hansen that he had been in 
contact with Steve Sutton of NFE and would continue to do so to ascertain what new structures 
were built and what maintenance was completed with the existing structures.  
 
Fraser confirmed that the cross pieces on Franklin Road were not part of the conversation with 
NFE prior to this project (with HRC.) Fraser will verify.   
 
Hansen further stated that there may be a performance issue with NFE. Fraser assured Hansen 
that NFE has been great to work with and he would contact Sutton and investigate the matter.  

 
Motion by Seltzer, seconded by Saenz, to approve the Proposal from Hubbell, Roth and 
Clark for Carol Street Drain Investigation not to exceed the amount of $27,210.00 with 
the contingency that the Village receives funds awarded from the Grant from the 

Michigan Economic Development Corporation through the State of Michigan as 
presented. 
 
 
 
 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 11 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 

 
Motion carried.  

 
E. Consider Proposal from Hubbell, Roth, and Clark for Pedestrian Path on 

Village Land/Easements in the Colony Hill/Irving/Captains Lane Area 
 
Zmich reviewed his submitted bid report. 
 
Zmich informed the Council that the affected residents for on the proposed pathway need to be 
notified.  
 
Responding to Gordon, Zmich said that water run off issues would be identified though 
preliminary topography, layout, and cross sections studies.  
 
Seltzer asked how many properties were affected, Zmich answered ten (10.)  
 
Gordon expressed his desire for the project to initiate and complete in a timely manner as 
recent Village project have had extensive delays. Hanke was in full support. Zmich stated that it 
was possible to expediate the process pending weather conditions. Zmich confirmed the prices 
would remain the same no matter what timeframe work was initiated.  

 
Motion by Gordon, seconded by Seltzer to approve the Proposal from Hubbell, Roth and 
Clark for Pedestrian Path on Village Land/Easements in the Colony Hill/Irving/Captains 
Lane Area as presented.  
 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  

 
F. Consider Ordinance Revision to Section 1268.28, Creating Standards for 

Garden Fence Enclosures   
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 1268.28(b)(11)(A), ZONING, OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF THE VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN, OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN, TO ADOPT 
REGULATIONS CONCERNING GARDEN FENCE STANDARDS. 

THE VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN ORDAINS: 

Section 1.    Amendment.  That Part 12 – Planning & Zoning Code, Title Four – Zoning, 
Chapter/Section 1268.28(b)(11)(A), Zoning, of the Codified Ordinances, Village of Franklin, 
Oakland County, Michigan, is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 12 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

A.  Location.  A garden enclosure shall not be permitted in any front yard nor any 
required side yard.  

 
Section 2.     Severability.  This ordinance and each Chapter, section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, part, provision, sentence, word and portion thereof are hereby declared to be 
severable; and if they or any of them are declared to be invalid or unenforceable for any 
reason by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is hereby provided that the remainder of this 
ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3.        Penalty.  All violations of this ordinance shall be municipal civil infractions and 
upon a determination of responsibility therefore shall be punishable by a civil fine of not 
more than $500 and such other sanctions as may be ordered pursuant to Village Code Section 
202.99. 

Section 4.        Savings. All proceedings pending and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired 
or incurred the time this ordinance takes effect, are saved and may be consummated 
according to the law in force when they were commenced. 

Section 5.        Repeal, Effective Date, Adoption. 

(1)       Repeal.   All regulatory provisions contained in other Village ordinances 
which conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

(2)       Effective Date.   This ordinance shall become effective on Sunday, 
January 02, 2022, twenty (20) days following its adoption, and shall be 
published prior to its effective date as mandated by charter and statute. 

(3)       Adoption.   This ordinance was adopted by the Village Council of the 
Village of Franklin at a meeting thereof held on December 13, 2021. 

Fraser invited Goldberg to expound on the change. Goldberg stated it was a minor, 
typographical error that needed to be corrected to  
 
(Under A. Location. A garden enclosure shall not be permitted in any front yard or any required 
side or read yard.) 
 
Motion by Gordon, seconded by Erlich to waive the second reading to approve the 
Ordinance Revision to Section 1268.28, Creating Standards for Garden Fence Enclosures 
as presented.   
 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  

 
G. Consider Resolution for Village Credit Card  



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 13 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

 
 

 
VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN, MICHIGAN 

RESOLUTION TO ACQUIRE CREDIT CARDS AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION  

AND RULES CONCERNING CREDIT CARD TRANSACTIONS 

WHEREAS, MCL 129.243 requires that a local governing unit may be a party to a 
credit card arrangement so long as it has a written policy concerning such credit card 
transactions; and 

WHEREAS, the Village Council desires to acquire credit cards concerning certain 
transactions and adopt the following Resolution concerning credit card transactions. 

THEREFORE, the Village Council of the Franklin Village resolves: 

1. The Village Council designates the Administrator as the employee responsible for 
credit card issuance, accounting, monitoring, and retrieval and generally for 
overseeing compliance with the credit card policy.  MCL 129.243 Sec. 3(a) 
 

2. The Village credit card may only be used by an employee of the Village for purchases 
of goods or services for official Village business.  MCL 129.243 Sec. 3(b) 

 
3. Any employee issued a Village credit card must submit documentation to the Clerk 

for any goods or services purchased including: a description of the goods or services 
purchased, the vendor name, the cost of the goods and services, the date of the 

purchase, and the official business for which purchased.  MCL 129.243 Sec. 3(c) 
 

4. Any employee issued a Village credit card is responsible for its protection and custody 
and shall immediately notify the Administrator if the credit card is lost or stolen.  MCL 
129.243 Sec. 3(d) 
 

5. Any employee issued a Village credit card shall return the credit card upon the 

termination of their employment with the Village.  MCL 129.243 Sec. 3(e) 
 

6. The Administrator shall be responsible for creating and maintaining a system of 
internal accounting controls to monitor the use of the credit cards issued by the 
Village.  MCL 129.243 Sec. 3(f) 
 

7. Credit card invoices must be approved prior to payment.  MCL 129.243 Sec. 3(g) 
 

8. Credit card invoices must be paid within 60 days after the initial statement date.  MCL 
129.243 Sec. 3(h) 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 14 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

 
9. Unauthorized use of the Village credit card by an employee shall result in disciplinary 

measures consistent with law.  MCL 129.243 Sec. 3(i) 
 

10. The Village Council shall approve the total Village credit card limit by resolution 
which shall be no higher than 5% of the total budget a maximum, annual spending 

limit of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) of the Village Budget (as determined by 
State law) for the current fiscal year.  MCL 129.244 Sec. 4(1)  
 

11. The Administrator will be responsible for determining credit limits for any employee 
issued a Village credit card. 

 
12. The credit card shall not be used for cash advances. 

 
Hansen requested clarification on why the amount of five percent (5%) max of the Village Budget 
listed in the resolution seemed too high as it equated to nearly $100,000.00. Gordon Agreed.  
 
Fraser stated the language was pulled directly from the Michigan Compiled Laws (MCL.)  

 
Motion by Seltzer, seconded by Saenz to approve the Resolution for Village Credit Card as 
amended to include a maximum, spending limit of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) 
annually of the Village budget for the current fiscal year. 
 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  

 

 
H. Consider Resolution for PA 152 Exemption 

 

RESOLUTION – EXEMPTION 

 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE ANNUAL EXPEMPTION OPTION AS SET FORTH IN 2011 

PUBLIC ACT 152, THE PUBLICLY FUNDED HEALTH INSURANCE CONTRIBUTION ACT. 

 

WHEREAS, 2011 Public Act 152 (the “Act”) was passed by the State Legislature and signed 

by the Governor on September 24, 2011; 

 

WHEREAS, the Act contains three options for complying with the requirements of the Act; 

 

WHEREAS, the three options are as follows; 

 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 15 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

1. Section 3 – “Hard Caps” Option – limits a public employer’s total annual health care 

costs for employees based on coverage levels, as defined in the Act; 

2. Section 4 – “80%/20% Option – limits a public employer’s share of total annual 

health care costs to not more than 80%.  This option requires an annual majority 

vote of the governing body; 

3. Section 8 – “Exemption” Option – a local unit of government, as defined in the Act, 

may exempt itself from the requirements of the Act by an annual 2/3 vote of the 

governing body; 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Franklin has decided to adopt the annual Exemption option as its 

choice of compliance under the Act; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Village Council of the Village of Franklin elects 

to comply with the requirements of 2011 Public Act 152, the Publicly Funded Health 

Insurance Contribution Act, by Adopting the annual Exemption option for the medical 

benefit plan coverage year January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2022. 

 
Motion by Saenz seconded by Seltzer, to approve the Resolution for PA 152 Exemption as 
presented.  
 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  

 
I. Consider Resolution in Support of Preservation of the Pickering Farm  

 
 
 A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF PRESERVATION OF THE PICKERING FARM  
 
Whereas the Pickering farm, located on the east side of Franklin Road north of Fourteen Mile, is 
a significant regional historic property, and  
 
Whereas the property is under contract for sale and could be developed into a new residential 
subdivision, and  
 
Whereas preservation of the historically important farmstead buildings would have a 
significant positive impact on the Village of Franklin as well as Bloomfield Township, and  
 
Whereas the Pickering Farm Preservation Association wants to purchase the farmstead so it 
can be repurposed for contemporary uses.  
 



Proceedings, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 16 

Regular Meeting, Monday, Decemeber 13, 2021, 7:00 PM 

 

Now therefore the Franklin Village Council commends the efforts of the Pickering Farm 
Preservation Association and supports development and implementation of a plan to preserve 
and constructively use the historically significant structures that comprise the Pickering Farm.  
 
Approved by the Franklin Village Board of Trustees this 13th day of December, 2021. 
 
Motion by Seltzer, seconded by Saenz to approve the Resolution in Support of 
Preservation of the Pickering Farm as presented.  
 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  
 

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
     Motion by Lamott, seconded by Hansen to adjourn.  

 
AYES:        Seltzer, Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Erlich, Gordon, and Lamott 
NAYS:        None 
 
Motion carried.  

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:19 PM. 

  
 
 

                                                         
  
   William Lamott 

                                                                                                                  Village Council President  
 

                                                                                                                                  
___________________________________ 

 
                                                                                      
  Heather Mydloski 

                                                                                                                                            Village Clerk 
 

                                                                                                                          
____________________________________ 

 



 

 

32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan 48025

 ______      

  F: (248) 626-0538        (248) 626-9666 

 

www.franklin.mi.us  
 

 

 

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

THURSDAY, December 16, 2021 3:30 P.M. 

32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan 48025 

The Village Council did not assemble to meet at a physical place; 

the meeting was held electronically via “Zoom.us©”, in accordance with the 

Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended by 2020 PA 228 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

The Special Council Meeting was called to order by President, Bill Lamott at 3:33 PM via Zoom.  

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

Present:           Mike Seltzer, Scottsdale, AZ; Pam Hansen, Franklin, MI; Mark Hanke, Fort Myers, FL;  

                        Ed Saenz, Franklin, MI and Bill Lamott, Glen Arbor, MI. 

 

Absent:            Kathy Erlich and Brian Gordon  

 

Also Present:  Roger Fraser, Village Administrator, David Golderg, Planning Commissioner and   

                       Heather Mydloski, Village Clerk. 

 

III. PUBLIC REQUESTS AND COMMENTS 

 

No Public Comments.  

 

IV. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

a. Community Development Block Grant Award Allocation  

 

Motion by Seltzer, seconded by Gordon to allocate $3,500.00 to HAVEN and $3,500.00 to 

NEXT out of the $7,000.00 Allocation for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Funds for the Plan Year 2022. 

 

Roll Call Vote 

Mark Hanke  AYE 

Mike Seltzer  AYE 

Ed Saenz   AYE 

Pam Hansen  AYE 

Bill Lamott   AYE 

http://www.franklin.mi.us/


Agenda, Village of Franklin, Village Council  Page 2 

Special Meeting,Thursday, December 16, 2021, 3:30 PM 

 

 

Motion Carried.  

 
Council discussion on Coyote sightings and a Village resident that lost their dog when a coyote 
pulled him through a fence. Lamott and Fraser to obtain pertaint advisory information.  
 
V. ADJOURNMENT  

 

Lamott to adjourned the meeting.  
 
AYES:         Saenz, Hansen, Hanke, Seltzer and Lamott  
NAYS:         None  
 
Motion carried.  
 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:42 PM. 

  

  

 
  

 William Lamott 

  Village Council President  

 

  

  ___________________ 

 

  

  

 

 Heather C. Mydloski 

  Village Clerk 

   

  ___________________ 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan 48025 

  F: (248) 626-0538    T:(248) 626-9666 

www.franklin.mi.us 

PROCLAMATION 

Village Council President Pro-Tem Brian Gordon  

In Appreciation of his Public Service to the Village of Franklin 

WHEREAS Brian Gordon has served as Village Trustee from July 2012 until January 2022; and, 

WHEREAS Brian Gordon has served as a Village Council President Pro-Tem from November 

2020 until January 2022; and, 

WHEREAS Brian Gordon was an active participant as a Village Trustee, exuding his building 

experience, asking purposeful questions to provoke well-rounded discussions, committed to representing 

the Village residents fairly; and,  

WHEREAS Brian Gordon was an active proponent of the Village Streetscape Project and an 

author of the Ballot Language Initiative; and, 

WHEREAS Brian Gordon was also an active proponent of the Village Downtown Lighting 

Initiative and,  

WHEREAS Brian Gordon was a member of the Final Design Committee for the Village 

Streetscape Project and was instrumental in the process of acquiring the desired atheistic of the Village 

residents; and,  

WHEREAS Brian Gordon has served as the Village Council Appointed Liaison for the Legal 
Committee; and, 

WHEREAS Brian Gordon has served as the Village Council Appointed Liaison to the Franklin – 

Bingham Farms Fire Department and was instrumental in the purchase of two (2) Fire Apparatus; and,  

WHEREAS Brian Gordon along with his wife, Julie Gordon have resided in the Village for 

thirty-one (31) years; and,  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on this 14th day of February 2022, that the Franklin 

Village Council hereby publicly recognizes, commends, and thanks Village Council President Pro-Tem 

Brian Gordon for his service to the Village. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution and expression of civic 

appreciation be presented to Brain Gordon on behalf of the undersigned. 

William Lamott, President 

Kathrine Erlich Mark Hanke 

Edward Saenz Michael Seltzer 

Pamela Hansen 

http://www.franklin.mi.us/




February 3, 2022 

Mr. Roger Fraser 
Village Administrator 
Village of Franklin 
32325 Franklin Road 
Franklin, Michigan 48025 
 

Dear Mr. Fraser: 

Thank you for meeting with me the other day to discuss the Village Council opening.  As I 
indicated during our conversation, I am interested in the position and I believe I would be an 
asset, without much of a learning curve, as I have attended hundreds of planning commission, 
city council, and ZBA meetings in many of the surrounding communities during my career as a 
real estate builder and developer.  I also built our home on Gardenway, eight years ago, and my 
wife and I love living in the village. 

As the property manager of many commercial properties, the managing member of several 
limited liability companies, and former president of several homeowner associations, I have 
experience with budgets, financing, and administration.  My career has allowed me to interface 
with countless mayors, city managers, planning directors, council and commission members, 
and community members. 

I also was involved in one particular intricate private/public development project with the City of 
Farmington Hills in 1999-2001.  The city owned an old and dilapidated golf course on the east 
side of Halsted north of 11 Mile along with a former city dump on the southwest corner.  The 
landfill had never been capped and was a liability.  The city also had the option to purchase an 
additional 20 undeveloped acres from the school board on the northeast corner of 11 Mile and 
Halsted to connect the properties.  Through a public bidding process, they asked for capping of 
the landfill, a new 18-hole golf course that would be designed to handle stormwater detention for 
a section of the city, a tunnel under the intersection connecting the two sides of the road, a new 
clubhouse with a restaurant, a driving range, and a parks and rec facility. They received eleven 
bids, culled the number first to eight, then to three, and ultimately, we were selected.  We ended 
up developing and building the entire project, including eighty condominiums on the golf course.  
The permitting process was extremely complex since there were regulated wetlands as well as 
the remediation of the landfill.  Twenty years later, this remains a valuable asset to the city. 

I am including my resume and the standard application form along with this letter. Should you or 
the council members have any questions, please feel free to contact me.   

Very truly yours, 

Albert J Ludwig 
27217 Gardenway 
Franklin, Mi 48025 
248-761-6909 
albert@tricapre.com   
 



Albert J. Ludwig 
27217 Gardenway Road 

Franklin, MI 48025 
(248) 761-6909 

 albert@tricapre.com 
 
 

PROFILE 
 
 

• Real estate professional and licensed builder with extensive experience in residential 
land development, residential and commercial construction, commercial real estate 
development, public/private development, and commercial property management  

• 48 years of experience in the planning and development of single-family residential 
subdivisions and condominiums, apartment complexes, office buildings, medical 
buildings, retail shopping centers, industrial buildings, Brownfield remediation, golf 
courses and hotel properties  

• Currently managing approximately 40 single and multi-tenant commercial and office 
properties containing over 1,000,000 square feet 

 
EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 
 
 
 

2005-Present    Managing Member 
     TriCap Holdings LLC 
     Consolidated Holdings, LLC 
          
2001-2005    Vice President of Operations 

Grant-Perry Development Company, LLC 
     West Bloomfield, MI      
 
2001 Director of Land Development 

Centex Homes 
Farmington Hills, MI  

 
1985-2001    Vice President 

Selective Development Company 
Farmington Hills, MI 
 

1973-1985     Vice President of J.E.S. Management Company 
General Manager of Regal Building Company  

 Oak Park, MI 
 

EDUCATION 
 
 

Wayne State University   1969 – 1972 
Detroit, Michigan 
 
Construction Institute of MI  
Detroit, Michigan   1975-1979 
 
TEAM LEADERSHIP ROLES: 
 
 

• Past President of several condominium association boards 
• Farmington/Farmington Hills Community Foundation Trustee 
• Farmington/Farmington Hills Grand River Corridor Improvement Committee Member 
• Farmington Hills Redevelopment Committee Member 
• BBYO Retreat Building Committee Member 
• NFWB Past President (NFWB is a non-profit little league softball and baseball organization 

for over 1,500 children) 
 







DAVID A. GOLDBERG 
27341 Willowgreen Ct. 

Franklin, Michigan 48025 
(248) 496-5858 

goldy6@sbcglobal.net 
 

 
EDUCATION: J.D., University of Detroit School of Law, Detroit, MI, 8/90 to 4/93.   
 Graduated cum laude.  Admitted to Michigan State Bar 11/93. 
 

B.A., English Major, University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, MI, 9/84 to 12/88.   
Graduated with honors. 

 
EXPERIENCE: Attorney and Counselor, 11/12 to Present, Law Office of David A. Goldberg, 

Madison Heights, MI.   Represent individuals and small businesses in various types 
of civil and criminal matters, including family law, real estate transactions and 
development, collection, contracts, landlord/tenant and probate.  Handle all aspects 
of civil pleadings, discovery, court appearances, and resolution.  Draft and negotiate 
real estate, construction and other contracts. 

 
 Principal Associate Broker, 12/09 to Present, Cedarwood Realty, Madison 

Heights, MI.   Principal real estate broker of company assisting corporate and 
individual clients in the sale, purchase, management and lease of commercial, 
industrial and residential properties.  Serve as listing broker for clients in the sale and 
lease of their properties, including marketing of assets, identification of prospective 
users, negotiation of deal terms, and closing of transactions.  Serve as buyer/tenant 
broker for clients in the purchase and lease of properties, including market analysis, 
site identification, property investigation and due diligence, negotiation of deal terms, 
and closing of transactions. 

 
 General Counsel and Associate Broker, 4/19 to 1/22, Alpha Real Estate 

Exchange, Southfield, MI.  General counsel and associate real estate broker for full 
service real estate brokerage company focusing on commercial and industrial 
investment properties. 

 
 Legal Counsel, 6/11 to 11/12, Grand/Sakwa Properties, Farmington Hills, MI.   In-

house legal counsel of private land development, construction and property 
management company.  Drafted and negotiated retail and office leases on behalf of 
landlords.  Managed and assisted outside legal counsel with respect to construction 
litigation, condominium litigation, landlord/tenant and other matters for company.  
Drafted and negotiated corporate formation and organizational documents.  Drafted 
construction contracts and oversaw construction lien matters for company’s 
residential building department.  Assisted land development department in performing 
due diligence and entitlement activities. 

 
 Assistant Director of Real Estate, 10/08 to 12/09, The Velmeir Companies, West 

Bloomfield, MI.   Assistant Director of Real Estate and Associate Broker of company 
that represented large national retailer and other retailers.  Conducted market 
research, identification, investigation, acquisition, entitlement, development, and 
construction of commercial property on behalf of retailers.  Negotiated and prepared 
commercial letters of intent, purchase agreements, ground leases and build-to-suit 
leases on behalf of seller/landlord and purchaser/tenant.  Worked directly with 
corporate representatives of large national retailer regarding their company’s real 
estate matters in Michigan. 

 



 General Counsel and Land Development Coordinator, 4/99 to 6/08, The Aspen 
Group, Southfield, MI.  General Counsel of private land development, construction 
and property management company.  Managed all aspects of the identification, 
investigation, acquisition, entitlement, development, construction and sale/leasing of 
single-family residential, multiple-family residential, commercial/office and mixed-use 
projects.  Served as legal counsel handling real estate transactions, construction 
contracts, leasing, entitlement/permitting, and financing, as well as drafting and 
negotiating corporate formation and organizational documents.  Acted as primary 
point person interacting with local municipalities, state agencies, and their private 
consultants.  Coordinated and oversaw planners, engineers and other consultants 
retained during the investigation, acquisition, entitlement, development, construction 
and finance process.  Negotiated and prepared leases with local and national 
retailers. 

 
Associate Attorney, 4/95 to 4/99, Seyburn, Kahn, Ginn, Bess, Deitch & Serlin, 
Southfield, MI.  Real estate and corporate attorney for general practice law firm, 
specializing in real estate transactions, land development, asset transactions, and 
financing.  Clients included public and private single-family and multiple-family 
residential, commercial and industrial developers and builders, as well as public and 
private corporations.  Responsibilities included drafting and negotiating real estate 
documents, closing real estate transactions, coordinating due diligence activities, 
drafting asset purchase/sale documents, and drafting and negotiating corporate 
formation and organizational documents. 

 
General Counsel, 4/93 to 4/95, The Rosin Companies, Southfield, MI.  General 
Counsel and assistant land development coordinator for the development and 
construction of single-family residential subdivisions and commercial shopping 
centers.  Coordinated the acquisition of vacant property, performed all aspects of the 
entitlement and development of projects, and oversaw the sale of developed lots. 

 
LICENSES &  Member of the State Bar of Michigan (P48900) 
AFFILIATIONS Licensed Real Estate Broker in the State of Michigan (6502360648) 
  Licensed Residential Builder in the State of Michigan (2101090463) 
  MDEQ Certified Storm Water Management Operator (00499) 
  Chairman of the Village of Franklin Planning Commission 
 
REFERENCES: Available upon request 

















To: The Board of Fire Commissioners 

From: Chief of Department Tony Averbuch 

Subject: Report for the 20 December 2021 Meeting 

 

Past 18 Months Response Trends:  

0
3
6
9

12
15
18
21
24
27
30
33
36
39
42

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

Sep O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja

n
Feb M

ar
A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
ly

A
ug

Sep
t

O
ct

N
ov

EMS

Fire/Other

False Alarm

CO Alarm

Power Line Down

Gas Leak

Invalid Assist

Misc. Request

Mutual Aid

HazMat

June Response Information (857):  

INCIDENT TYPE  # INCIDENTS 

200 - Overpressure rupture, explosion, overheat other 1 

251 - Excessive heat, scorch burns with no ignition 2 

321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 23 

322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 2 

412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 2 

551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 2 

600 - Good intent call, other 1 

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 1 

714 - Central station, malicious false alarm 1 

733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 2 

  37 

 

Average response time for the month (72) 

RESPONSE MODE 
NUMBER of 

APPARATUS 
AVERAGE RESPONSE TIME in MM:SS 

(Dispatch to Arrived) 

Lights and Sirens 32 5:09 

No Lights or Sirens 31 5:05 

Total: 63 5:07 

Incidents Calls by Hour (1010):  

 
 



Top Ten Responders (YTD)(1512): 

1. LT Croyle 6. FF Kolar 

2. LT Johnson 7. FF Stefancin 

3. CAPT Kelly 8. FF Johnson 

4. FF Longworth 9. FF Rubin 

5. FF Kelly 10. LT Buck 

 

Village Zone Responses for the Previous Month (1285) 

 
 

False alarms that have occurred during the month (1692): 

Incident Date Incident # Address Zone Custom Questions 

600 - Good intent call, other (Not Billable) 

11/02/2021 2021-
21566 

33311    Frankliln  RD       
Franklin,  MI 48025 

Franklin Village - 
Commercial Was this alarm caused by 

contractors?: N/A 

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route (Not Billable) 

11/27/2021 2021-
21595 

23790    Ravineview  CT       
Bingham Farms, 
 MI 480254802 

Bingham Farms - 
Residential Was this alarm caused by 

contractors?: Unknown 

714 - Central station, malicious false alarm (Not Billable) 

11/22/2021 2021-
21589 

30400    Telegraph  RD       
Bingham Farms, 
 MI 480254802 

Bingham Farms - 
Commercial Was this alarm caused by 

contractors?: No 

733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction (Billable) 

11/09/2021 2021-
21575 

30515    Oakview         
Bingham Farms, 
 MI 480254802 

Bingham Farms - 
Residential Was this alarm caused by 

contractors?: Yes 

11/15/2021 2021-
21581 

30900    Franklin Oaks  TRL   
    

Franklin,  MI 48025 

Franklin Village - 
Residential Was this alarm caused by 

contractors?: Yes 

 



To: The Board of Fire Commissioners 

From: Chief of Department Tony Averbuch 

Subject: Report for the 21 January Meeting 

 

2018 Response Review: 

 2020 2019 2018 

Total Incidents 495 538 591 

Volunteer station time committed 1863.5 hours 2,945.2 hours 2,720.6 hours 

Total Individual Incident Responses 2,040 (1,215 hours) 2,174 (1,233 hours) 2,675 (1,390 hours) 

Annual Average Response Time 4.8 minutes 5.07 minutes 4.93 minutes 

 

Incident Classifications:  Apparatus Responses:             Top Ten Responders 

Fires – 6    Engine 4 – 228   Steve C. (227)      Jeff S. (121) 

EMS – 250   Tanker 5 - 7   Gerald J. (209)  Richard R. (114) 

Hazardous Conditions– 64  Tanker 6 - 4   Peter K. (181)       John B. (88) 

False Alarms/Cancelled – 143 Ladder 1 – 17   Kevin K. (164)  Rebecca K. (83) 

Others – 32   Rescue 7 – 300   Peter L. (129)  Tim A. (78) 

    Rescue 9 – 3  

Incidents by hour and day for 2020: 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

0000-0600

0600-1200

1200-1800

1800-0000

Past 18 Months Response Trends:  

0
3
6
9

12
15
18
21
24
27
30
33
36

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

Sep O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja

n
Feb M

ar
A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

A
ug

Sep O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

EMS

Fire/Other

False Alarm

CO Alarm

Power Line Down

Gas Leak

Invalid Assist

Misc. Request

Mutual Aid

HazMat

 

December Response Information:  

37 incidents for the month of December 2020. Average response time for the month (time of call to time on-scene) 

was 5.19 minutes.  Below listed are those false alarms that have occurred during the month of December: 

 

Date Incident. Village Address Time Billable Comments 

12/2/20 465 Franklin 32945 Franklin Ct 20:57 Yes Malfunction 

12/4/20 468 Franklin 26071 Meadow 23:27 No Cancelled En Route 

12/6/20 471 Southfield 29260 Franklin Rd 19:33 No Wrong Dispatch Location (City)  

12/17/20 483 Franklin 30650 Inkster 10:24 No CO Detector Malfunction 

12/19/20 484 Franklin 32220 Franklin Rd 03:12 Yes Malfunction 

12/19/20 485 Franklin 30026 Oakleaf Ln 13:19 No Cancelled En Route 

12/21/20 487 Bingham Farms 29340 Brooks Ln 16:56 No Cancelled En Route 

12/23/20 492 Franklin 26426 Scenic Rd 23:30 No False Call, Other 

12/28/20 495 Franklin 32220 Franklin Rd 02:30 Yes Malfunction 

12/29/20 496 Bingham Farms 32270 Telegraph 08:22 Yes Malfunction 

12/29/20 497 Bingham Farms 32600 Telegraph 14:04 Yes Malfunction 

 



Village of Franklin

Proposed Budget Amendment 12/31/2021

 Current 

Amended 

Budget 

 Proposed 

Amended 

Budget 

General Fund (101)

Revenues: Positive/(Negative) Change

101‐000‐445.000 PENALTY & INTEREST ON TAXES            3,406 

101‐000‐501.000 COMMUNITY DEVEL BLK GRANT               650 

101‐000‐539.000 GRANT PROCEEDS (American Rescue Plan Act)       167,560 

101‐000‐573.000 LOCAL COMMUMITY STABILIZATION SHARE               637 

101‐000‐575.000 LIQUOR LICENSE FEES            1,050 

101‐000‐670.000 KREGER HOUSE RENTAL            1,100 

101‐000‐679.000 OTHER REIMBURSEMENTS            1,100 

Total Revenues 1,453,339          175,503          1,628,842        

Expenditures: (Positive)/ Negative Change

Village Council

101‐101‐821.000 GENERAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 23,825        

101‐101‐900.000 PUBLIC INFORMATION 17,140        

Total Village Council Department 87,175                40,965            128,140            

Village Clerk

101‐215‐705.000 GROUP INSURANCE (Incoming Clerk Single Coverage) 2,704          

101‐215‐853.000 TELEPHONE/EMAIL HOSTING 2,891          

Total Village Clerk Department 75,773                5,595              81,368              

Treasury/General Office

101‐253‐728.000 COMPUTER SOFTWARE & SUPPLIES 120              

101‐253‐810.000 BOOKKEEPING CONTRACTED SERVICES 716              

101‐253‐900.000 TAX COLLECTION EXPENSES 431              

Total Treasury/General Office Department 3,700                  1,267              4,967                

Building and Grounds Department

101‐265‐810.000 CONTRACTED SERVICES 19,427        

101‐265‐853.000 COMMUNICATION EXP. 2,423          

Total Building and Grounds Department 62,000                21,850            83,850              

Community Programs

101‐747‐902.000 WEBSITE EXPENSES 2,031          

Total Community Program Department 33,000                2,031              35,031              

General Insurance

101‐851‐911.000 LIABILITY INSURANCE & BONDS 610              

Total Building and Grounds : City Hall department 24,400                610                  25,010              

Capital Expenditures

101‐901‐981.000 ADMIN.OFFICE FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT 10,000        

Total Capital Expenditures Department 35,000                10,000            45,000              

Transfers Out

101‐000‐995.003 TRANSFER TO WASTE WATER FUND 8,459          

Total Transfers Out department 1,160,800          8,459              1,169,259        

Total Expenditures (all departments) 1,846,777          90,777            1,937,554        

Net Revenues and Expenditures (393,438)             84,726            (308,712)          

Combined General Fund:

Audited Beginning Fund Balance at July 1, 2021 1,594,326           1,594,326        

Budgeted Ending Fund Balance at June 30, 2022 1,200,888           1,285,614        

 Proposed Budget 

Amendment 



Village of Franklin

Proposed Budget Amendment 12/31/2021

 Current 

Amended 

Budget 

 Proposed 

Amended 

Budget 
 Proposed Budget 

Amendment 

Major Street Fund (202)

Revenues: Positive/(Negative) Change

Total Revenues 252,366              ‐                   252,366            

Expenditures: (Positive)/ Negative Change

Streets Department

202‐451‐818.001 ROAD & STREET CONSTRUCTION (partial portion of Asphalt Specialist invoices) 399,172      

Total Streets department 145,200              399,172          544,372            

Total Expenditures (all departments) 145,200              399,172          544,372            

Net Revenues and Expenditures 107,166              (399,172)         (292,006)          

Audited Beginning Fund Balance at July 1, 2021 294,565              294,565            

Budgeted Ending Fund Balance at June 30, 2022 401,731$            2,559$              



Village of Franklin

Proposed Budget Amendment 12/31/2021

 Current 

Amended 

Budget 

 Proposed 

Amended 

Budget 
 Proposed Budget 

Amendment 

Street Project Fund (402)

Revenues: Positive/(Negative) Change

402‐000‐665.000 INTEREST INCOME            1,200 

Total Revenues ‐                       1,200              1,200                

Expenditures: (Positive)/ Negative Change

Street Project 402

402‐900‐812.000 ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 478,383      

402‐900‐821.000 ENGINEERING SERVICES 118,289      

Total Street Project 402 department ‐                       596,672          596,672            

Total Expenditures (all departments) ‐                       596,672          596,672            

Net Revenues and Expenditures ‐                       (595,472)         (595,472)          

Audited Beginning Fund Balance at July 1, 2021 597,002              597,002            

Budgeted Ending Fund Balance at June 30, 2022 597,002$            1,530$              

Waste Water Fund (542)

542‐000‐485.000 TRI‐ANNUAL SEPTAGE PERMITS            6,645 

542‐000‐541.000 STATE GRANT PROCEEDS (Michigan Enhancement Grant)       200,000 

542‐000‐699.001 TRANSFER IN FROM GENERAL FUND            8,459 

Total Revenues 10,700                215,104          225,804            

Expenditures: (Positive)/ Negative Change

Waste Water Department

542‐371‐821.000 ENGINEERING SERVICES (Increase for Michigan Enhancement Grant above) 215,104      

Total Waste Water Department 10,700                215,104          225,804            

Total Expenditures (all departments) 10,700                215,104          225,804            

Net Revenues and Expenditures ‐                       (0)                     (0)                       

Audited Beginning Fund Balance at July 1, 2021 ‐                       ‐                     

Budgeted Ending Fund Balance at June 30, 2022 ‐$                     (0)$                     

Grand Total

Total Budgeted Revenues (of funds with proposed amendments) 1,716,405           391,807          2,108,212        

4,289,543           4,289,543        

Total Budgeted Revenues (all funds) 6,005,948          391,807          6,397,755        

Total Budgeted Expenditures (of funds with proposed amendments) 2,002,677           1,301,725       3,304,402        

4,390,848           4,390,848        

Total Budgeted Expenditures (all funds) 6,393,525          1,301,725      7,695,250        

Net Revenues and Expenditures (all funds) (387,577)             (909,918)         (1,297,495)       

Audited Beginning Fund Balance at July 1, 2021 9,814,470          9,814,470        

Budgeted Ending Fund Balance at June 30, 2022 9,426,893          8,516,975        

Total Budgeted Revenues of funds not amended (Local Streets, Fire, Police, Rubbish, Building, Library, General Debt, Road Millage Debt, 

Pressure Sewer)

Total Budgeted Expenditures of funds not amended (Local Streets, Fire, Police, Rubbish, Building, Library, General Debt, Road Millage Debt, 

Pressure Sewer)



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 1/1Page
:

02/11/2022 10:05 AM
User: SUSAN
DB: Franklin Village

CHECK DATE FROM 12/10/2021 - 02/10/2022

213,800.60 Total for fund 101 GENERAL

44,053.01 Total for fund 202 MAJOR STREETS

17,571.44 Total for fund 203 LOCAL STREETS

155,895.28 Total for fund 207 POLICE

34,297.63 Total for fund 226 GARBAGE & RUBBISH

33,001.08 Total for fund 249 BUILDING DEPARTMENT

1,921.50 Total for fund 401 PRESSURE SEWER

3,192.50 Total for fund 402 STREET PROJECT

18,512.79 Total for fund 542 WASTE WATER

522,245.83 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



 

32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan 

48025 

       

   FAX: (248) 626-0538            (248) 626-9666 

 

www.franklin.mi.us  
 

 

MAIN STREET FRANKLIN 

MAIN STREET OAKLAND COUNTY ACCREDITATION OVERVIEW 

 
 

Main Street Franklin will be undergoing Main Street America’s Program Accreditation 

facilitated by Main Street Oakland County on February 9th. Main Street Oakland County 

(MSOC) works with Select Level member communities, like Franklin, to achieve and 

maintain Main Street America Accredited status. During the evaluation process, the Main 

Street Franklin (MSF) program will be measured against the Main Street America Standards 

of Performance. These standards of performance are used for designating programs as Main 

Street America Accredited members. 

 

This accreditation processes ensures Main Street Franklin’s commitment to utilizing Main Street 

Approach to create preservation-based economic development and community revitalization. 

Main Street Franklin must meet the requirements of 6 accreditation categories. MSF will be 

assessed on criteria such as its mission and vision statements, comprehensive workplan, the 

program’s community support, historic preservation ethics, having a paid professional manager, 

program data collection and reporting, and continued education opportunities, 

In preparation of the meeting with Oakland County, Main Street Franklin drafted a number of 

organizational documents including: a strategic work pan, budget report and summary, a façade 

grant program, board member roster, annual schedule of board meetings, an MSF highlight 

outlining the accomplishments and overall success of the program. In January, the Main Street 

Board held a special meeting to discuss components of the accreditation and review documents. 

 

The 2021 accreditation took place on February 9th at which point Main Street Franklin received 

accreditation at the highest Main Street Level  making Franklin a “Select Community”. 

Typically, the accreditation process will take place once every three years, however, due to 

MSF’s frequently changing leadership, the organization has not undergone a complete 

accreditation evaluation in several years.  

 

 

 

http://www.franklin.mi.us/


 

32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan 48025 

       

  F: (248) 626-0538     T:(248) 626-9666 

 

www.franklin.mi.us  
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

OAKLAND COUNTY PARKS and RECREATION TRAILWAYS and PARK 
IMPROVEMENT GRANT for the Construction of Irving Trail 

 

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
OAKLAND COUNTY 

MICHIGAN 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Village of Franklin will hold 
a public hearing on an application for an Oakland County 
Parks and Recreation (OCPR) Trailways and Park 
Improvement Grant.  The Hearing will be held on February 14, 
2022, at 7:00 pm to hear public comments on the OCPR 
Trailways and Park Improvement Grant for the construction 
of the Irving Trail.  All interested citizens are requested to 
attend the hearing. 
 
The hearing will be held during the regularly scheduled 
meeting of the Village Council on February 14, 2022, at 7:00 
pm, at the Franklin Community Church located at 26425 
Wellington Road, Franklin, Michigan 48025. 
 
Arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs, 
including handicap accessibility or interpreter, will be made 
upon receiving 72-hour notice. Contact Village Clerk, Heather 
Mydloski at 248-626-9666 for special services. 

 
       Heather Mydloski 
       Village Clerk 
 
Posted:  January 24, 2022 
Published:  Observer Eccentric Newspaper, January 30, 2022 

 

http://www.franklin.mi.us/


 

32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan 48025 

       

  F: (248) 626-0538     T:(248) 626-9666 

 

www.franklin.mi.us  
 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO:       Franklin Village Board of Trustees 

FROM:      Roger Fraser, Village Administrator 

SUBJECT:  Appointment of Village Clerk 

DATE:       February 14, 2022 

As the Trustees all know our Village Clerk, Heather Mydloski, has submitted her resignation. She has 

graciously agreed to stay on for several more weeks to assist in the transition of a new Clerk.   

The Village Charter was amended in November 2020, to change the office of Village Clerk from an 

elected position to an appointed position where the appointment of a new Clerk is made by the Village 

Council for an unspecified term, with the incumbent working under the direction of the Council and the 

Village Administrator.  After the November 2020 election, I asked the Village Attorney’s guidance 

regarding a residency requirement for an appointed Village Clerk.  Mr. Staran presented a thorough 

analysis of the new charter language, the implications of remaining charter language on the selection of 

a new appointee and the State guidance regarding residency requirements in public employment.  In 

summary, he found that both the specific language of the Charter as amended and the State regulations 

prohibiting local governments from imposing a residency requirement as a condition of public 

employment preclude a residency requirement  for a new Village Clerk.  I have shared Mr. Staran’s 

opinion with Peter Gojcaj for his consideration.  Believing that a residency requirement is not relevant to 

the employment of a new village clerk, we proceeded with the recruitment process accordingly.   

I am pleased to recommend to the Village Trustees the appointment of Dana Hughes as the new Village 

Clerk, effective February 28, 2022, subject to a satisfactory background check.  Ms. Hughes has worked 

as Village Clerk for the City of Ecorse since January of 2014.  She is certified as a municipal clerk, has a 

BBA in business administration from UofM Dearborn and has an interesting track record as a volunteer 

in the community in which she lives.   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

http://www.franklin.mi.us/


















 

32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan 48025 

       

  F: (248) 626-0538     T:(248) 626-9666 

 

www.franklin.mi.us  
 

 

 

 

 

PROCLAMATION 

Sergeant Mark Dyjewski of the Franklin Bingham Farms Police Department 

In Appreciation of his Public Service to the Village of Franklin 

 

 WHEREAS Sergeant Mark Dyjewski has served in the capacity of Police Officer from August 

27, 1996, until December 31, 2021; and,   

 WHEREAS Sergeant Mark Dyjewski was promoted to Sergeant in 2013 due to his knowledge, 

skills and abilities, and supervised several Officers on a daily basis; and, 

 WHEREAS Sergeant Mark Dyjewski has received many awards and formal recognitions for the 

performance of his duties during his tenure on the police department; and,  

  WHEREAS Sergeant Mark Dyjewski has served for many years as the evidence room manager, 

providing oversight of all the seized evidence from many different cases and investigations; and,  

 WHEREAS Sergeant Mark Dyjewski has maintained an impeccable reputation with the residents 

of the Village of Franklin with his pleasant and professional demeanor; and,   

 WHEREAS Sergeant Mark Dyjewski graduated from the Northwestern University School of 

Staff and Command; and,   

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on this 14th day of February 2022, that the Franklin 

Village Council hereby publicly recognizes, commends, and thanks Sergeant Mark Dyjewski for his 

service to the Village. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution and expression of civic 

appreciation be presented to Sergeant Mark Dyjewski on behalf of the undersigned. 

 

              

William Lamott, President 

              

Kathrine Erlich       Mark Hanke 

 

             

Edward Saenz       Michael Seltzer  

 

        

Pamela Hansen         

 
 

 

 

 
 

http://www.franklin.mi.us/


 

FRANKLIN VILLAGE 

Board of Trustees 
 

32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan  48025 

       
 

R E S O L U T I O N 

 

WHEREAS the Village Trustees desire to proceed with the development of a pedestrian pathway 

(Irving Trail) in an existing pedestrian easement between Apple Tree Lane and Irving Road in 

the northwest corner of the Village for an estimated cost of $66,000.00, and 

 

WHEREAS the development of pedestrian trails is encouraged by the Franklin Village Master 

Plan, and  

 

WHEREAS Oakland County Parks and Recreation has a Trailways Grant Program which can 

provide partial funding for the development of the Irving Trail, and  

 

WHEREAS the grant program requires applicants to provide a local funding match of twenty-

five percent (25%) of the requested grant amount as well as to certify compliance with all grant 

program requirements, including commitment to long-term maintenance of the trail and payment 

of any and all project cost overruns. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees hereby approves Village 

participation in the Oakland County Recreation Trailways Grant Program and authorizes a 

Trailways Grant application in the amount of $49,500.00, and  

 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Village Trustees acknowledge and certify compliance 

with all grant program requirements, including a commitment to long-term maintenance of the 

trail and agree to pay any project cost overruns, and 

 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED the Village will provide a twenty five percent (25%) match for 

the approved grant amount in cash, force account, federal or state funds, private funds or labor or 

materials donated directly to the project in the amount of $16,500.00, and 

 

IT IS RESOLVED the Village Administrator is authorized execute all grant related documents 

on behalf of the Village of Franklin. 

 

Approved by the Franklin Village Board of Trustees this 14th Day of February, 2022. 

 

 

 



1

Application Guidance
Responses to questions in the online application should be brief, but informative. Maximum word counts are 
identified for each question, but do not need to be reached for a successful application.

 TAB 1: APPLICANT INFORMATION

Project Title – Irving  Trail
Please use a title that includes the applicant municipality name and a few words to describe the proposed project 
(i.e. “Ferndale Pathway Development,” or “Clawson City Park Playground Replacement.”)

Name of City, Village or Township  - Village of Franklin
Select applicant city, village or township from the drop-down menu.

Primary Grant Administrator Contact Information – Roger W. Fraser, Village Administrator
This should be the person responsible for administering the grant and should be someone directly familiar with 
the project and able to answer questions about the project.

Project Partners
Please describe any partners that are contributing directly or indirectly to the project, i.e. financial support, 
volunteer labor/services, donors of materials/supplies, etc. Please do not list project “supporters” in this section, 
but rather submit letters of support from these organizations in the “Uploads” section of the online application.

Grant Type - Development Grant Program (construction)
Select the type of grant for which you are applying – Pre-Development Grant Program (design, engineering, 
planning, etc.) or Development Grant Program (construction).

 TAB 2: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Match Sources – General Funds
Please list all match sources in this section. Match can be identified as “pledged, awarded, budgeted, or pending.” 
Please list each source separately by adding a new row for each match source. Pending funding should include 
any other grants that have been applied for but not awarded at the time of submission. Applicant match sources 
may include:

1. General Funds or Local Restricted Funds: Local cash or budgeted funding from the applicant’s general fund or 
restricted recreation funds.

2. Force Account Labor: The applicant’s paid employees who will work directly on the construction of the 
project. This value cannot include administration or supervision costs, but may include design engineering 
and other professional services.

3. Federal or State Funds: Federal or State grant funds that have been awarded (or are pending award) for 
funding within the OCPR grant project period.

4. Private or Philanthropy: Funding that has been awarded through private donations or philanthropic 
organizations.

5. Cash Donations: Cash generated from donations, fund-raising, or other similar means.



2

6. Donated Labor/Materials: Labor or materials directly related to the construction of the project from sources 
other than the applicant’s own paid labor. Donated labor will be valued at minimum wage, unless the person 
is professionally skilled in the work being performed on the project. When a professional is volunteering 
professional services, the wage rate this individual is normally paid for performing this service may be 
charged to the project. Value of donated materials must be documented. Value of donated land will not be 
counted as match.

Grant Match and Project Costs – 25% Match Proposed
Please list the total project cost, the amount requested from OCPR, and the local match being provided. Indicate 
the status of each match source using the drop-down menu to select “pledged, awarded, budgeted, or pending.”

Trailways Grant Program
• Development Grants - 25% match required. Grants range from $5,000 - $200,000 (for example, for a

$200,000 project, a minimum of $50,000 must be provided by the applicant).

Project Budget -$66,000 total - $49.5k grant and $16.5 k match
Using the form in the online application, please provide a project budget. To add additional scope items, click 
the plus sign to add additional rows. Please round to the nearest dollar. Grantees are responsible for all cost 
overruns or any additional costs needed to complete the project that are not identified in the submitted project 
budget. See Eligibility section for a list of ineligible expenses. 

 TAB 3: PROJECT DETAILS

Project Description
This section contains five individual questions to provide detail on the project.
1. Describe the physical location of the proposed project and ownership of the property. Describe any nearby 

features or amenities that may impact the project or benefit from the project. (250 word max)
The Irving  trail is proposed in existing undeveloped platted public right of way of Irving Road of Franklin 
Village Subdivision. The road was abandoned by the Village but the Village of Franklin retained easement 
rights.  The proposed trail will extend from the end of the pavement on Apple Tree Lane, east of Colony 
Hill Drive, to the cul-de-sac at the end of Irving Road to the southeast.   

There is an unimproved “goat path”  already established.  Residents currently use this area as a cut thru to 
access the adjacent subdivisions.    

2. Describe the project design and why it was chosen. (250 word max)
This project was chosen because  the unimproved path  is already established.  Residents currently use this 
area as a cut thru to access the adjacent subdivisions and have been requesting this trail for quite a while.
  
Trail will be a 10 foot wide non-motorized gravel trail constructed of 10 inches of gravel.    This area has 
dense trees and organics soils are presumed to exist.  Tree removal, grading, geogrid will be needed.  

Provide a relevant history/background information (including any environmental concerns that have been 
identified on the project property and how you plan to address them). (250 word max)  Trees , organic 
soils , and surface drainage are the only environment concerns. The trail will be located such that it will 



3

minimize impacts to the trees.  Organic soils below trail will need to be removed. Geogrid will be placed as 
needed to provide stability for the trail.  Surface drainage will be maintained. Culverts will be installed to 
prevent standing water.      

3. Describe the community need for the project – describe how you are proposing to meet an existing identified 
need and not duplicating services. Describe anticipated community impact and usage. (250 word max) 
Village roads lack sidewalks so residents travel on interior local roads.     Constructing sidewalks on main 
roads as well as completing gaps is a goal of the Village.   The trail connects subdivisions located within 
the square mile between 13 and 14 Mile Roads and Inkster and Franklin Roads.    Currently, the west half 
is not connect to the east half.  This trail will provide connectivity for the entire square mile for over 300 
homes. 

Project Identification in Planning Documents (100 word max)
Indicate where and how this project is addressed in relevant community planning documents, which may 
include: 5 Year Parks and Recreation Master Plan, Capital Improvement Plan, Park Master Plan, Capital 
Improvement Plan, Community Master Plan, Complete Streets Plan, Trailway Master Plan, Pathway Plan, etc. 
Please include a link or directions to where the documents can be found online. If not available online, please 
include relevant pages of the document as an upload in the uploads section of this application.

Village of Franklin Master plan Goal 10 p 1-10 Objectives: 1. Create a network of safe routes for pedestrians 
and cyclists to move around the Village.

Non – motorized Transportation P9-7 & 8 “ … some of these cul-de-sacs might be connected to one another 
to provide better access within the Village for all types of local users; connecting cul-de-sacs to each other or 
to major roads with non-motorized trails could be effective ….”

P 10-5 Implementation task - Construct pathways throughout the Village and safe pedestrian crossings along 
major roads in the Village.

https://www.franklin.mi.us/document_center/Government/Planning%20Commission/MasterPlan.pdf

Public Engagement/Support (250 word max)
Applicants must hold at least one public meeting (advertised in a manner that would satisfy the Michigan Open 
Meetings Act) to receive public input about the project. This can be a regularly scheduled board/commission 
meeting or a separate stakeholder or public input meeting. Support for the project will need to be demonstrated 
in the application. Include a summary of all relevant public engagement regarding the proposed project.

Residents have been working the Village Council members to encourage the construction of trails that will 
close gaps and provide connections to existing trails.    The trail was discussed at least three council meetings 
October 11, 2021,  November 08, 2022 and December 12,   The agendas are published prior to the meetings 
so all residents are encouraged to attend and public comment. 

Sustainability (250 word max)
Projects that consider sustainability in their design and construction will receive more points than those that 
do not. Sustainable design/construction creates products and services that have considered the environmental, 
social, and economic impacts from the initial phase throughout the design life. Examples of sustainable design
principles include, but are not limited to, low-impact materials, energy efficiency, reuse and recycling, durability, 
water conservation, etc.  

Sustainability was considered by maintaining current drainage patterns of the surface water and not creating 

https://www.franklin.mi.us/document_center/Government/Planning%20Commission/MasterPlan.pdf


4

pockets of standing water.  Trees will have to be removed; however, due care will be used to minimize impact 
and removal of trees. 

Long-Term Maintenance (100 word max)
Development projects funded by OCPR must be maintained and open to the public for a minimum of 15 years from 
OCPR approval of final report. Describe how the project will be maintained long-term, including any equipment or 
staffing needs and how they will be addressed.
The trail will require minimal maintenance.  Minimal grading and tree trimming maybe required on 

occasion.  The trail will be maintained by current Village staff.   

ADA Compliance/Universal Accessibility (250 word max)
Projects must, at a minimum, meet accessibility requirements of the ADA – 2010 ADA Design Standards. 
Projects not covered under the ADA should follow the US Access Board Outdoor Developed Areas Accessibility 
Guidelines. Indicate whether you consulted with anyone in the disability community for review of the design
of the project or of specific scope items that relate to accessibility. Upload a letter or meeting minutes which 
specifies their recommendations, if any, on how the project can meet or exceed ADA requirements. Letters 
from consultants or equipment representatives will not be considered as input from an advocate of the disability 
community. Additional points will be awarded for projects that incorporate Universal Design principles.
Describe how the proposed project will be ADA compliant and list any project components that incorporate 
principles of Universal Design. Include any relevant and applicable design drawings, specifications, etc. in the 
“Uploads” section of this application. (The National Disability Authority has an excellent summary of the 7 
Principles of Universal Design).  

The trail will be designed to be ADA compliant including but not limited to surface, cross slope, and 
running slope.   The trail width is proposed at 10 feet wide so adequate passing space will be available.  
Protruding objects shall be removed to a height of 10 feet. The design will comply with all ADA requires 
set forth in 2010 ADA Design Standards and the US Access Board Outdoor Developed Areas 
Accessibility Guidelines.   

Project Dates
Costs incurred for a project prior to the date the grant agreement is executed will not be eligible for 
reimbursement. The grant period for pre-development projects is one year from the date the grant agreement 
is executed. The grant period for development projects is three years from the date the grant agreement is
executed. Grant monies not used during the grant period (including any extensions granted) will be forfeited 
and allocated funds will be returned to the OCPR’s grant fund. Grant period extensions due to extenuating 
circumstances may be requested, in writing, by grantees prior to the end of an identified grant period.
Extensions will be granted at the discretion of OCPR grant management staff (OCPR Planning).

Construction in July of 2022

Site Control
Select the type of site control the applicant has over the site where the project is to be completed. 
Site control may be fee-simple, less-than-fee-simple, lease, easement, or other control. – The 
Village of Franklin is the easement holder for this path property. 
 
Select whether or not the park or facility has any required entrance fees – annual, daily, non-resident, etc.  – No 
fees- The trail is available for use by all

Ease of Access
Select the ways in which people can access the site – automobile only, bicycle on-street, dedicated bike lane, 

https://www.ada.gov/regs2010/2010ADAStandards/2010ADAstandards.htm
https://www.access-board.gov/files/aba/guides/outdoor-guide.pdf
https://www.access-board.gov/files/aba/guides/outdoor-guide.pdf
http://universaldesign.ie/what-is-universal-design/the-7-principles/
http://universaldesign.ie/what-is-universal-design/the-7-principles/
https://www.ada.gov/regs2010/2010ADAStandards/2010ADAstandards.htm
https://www.ada.gov/regs2010/2010ADAStandards/2010ADAstandards.htm
https://www.access-board.gov/files/aba/guides/outdoor-guide.pdf
https://www.access-board.gov/files/aba/guides/outdoor-guide.pdf
https://www.access-board.gov/files/aba/guides/outdoor-guide.pdf


5

sidewalk, nearby bus stop (within ¼ mile). – The non-motorized trail will be accessible for cyclists and 
pedestrians

Certified Resolution – forth coming. Draft Resolution for February 14, 2022 attached.
A certified copy of a resolution from the applicant’s governing body (city council, village council, township 
board) must be uploaded in the “Uploads” section of the online grant application (see Appendix A: Sample 
Resolution). This resolution shall state and include the following: (1) approval of the Community’s participation 
in the Program, (2) authorization of the application for the Program, (3) designation of the person authorized
to sign on the Community’s behalf, and (4) certification of the Community’s compliance with the Program’s 
requirements, including commitment to long-term maintenance and to all project cost overruns.

Final Report & Reimbursement - Understood
The OCPR Trailways and Park Improvements Grant Programs are reimbursement grants. If awarded a grant, the 
community will have an opportunity to request reimbursement on a quarterly basis. A final report will need to 
be submitted and approved by OCPR grant management staff prior to the release of the final 20% of grant funds.

Uploads Required: 
• Project Location Map: The applicant must submit a map with the project location and public parking  

location. The applicant can submit multiple maps combined into a single PDF or up to 3 JPEG. 0  - 
Attached 

• Project Site Plan/Map: The applicant must submit a map or site plan that shows the detailed locations of the 
project scope items to be funded by the grant, i.e., proposed playground location, proposed trail route, etc. 
This map or site plan does not need to be a professional site plan. - Attached

Certified Resolution - – forth coming. Draft Resolution for February 14, 2022 attached.
• A certified copy of a resolution from the applicant’s governing body (city council, village council

Optional:
• Letters of Support (submit as one combined PDF or up to 3 JPEG) - Attached
• Design drawings/specifications (submit as one combined PDF or up to 3 JPEG) Attached
• Photographs with captions that indicate the relevant content of the photo (submit as one combined PDF or 

up to 3 JPEG)
• Other



DATE

JOB NO.

OF

SHEET NO.555 HULET DRIVE

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICH.

P.O.  BOX 824

48303 - 0824

C 2021 Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. All Rights Reserved

Y
:\

2
0
2
1
0
2
\

2
0
2
1
0
2
9
5
\

0
3
_

S
t
u
d
ie
s
\

R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
\

F
r
a
n
k
li
n
_

P
a
t
h
_

S
la

g
.d

g
n

m
b
ie

h
l

I:
\

M
S

V
8
i\

p
lt
c
f
g
\

p
ib
la

c
k
.p

e
n

0
8
-

N
O

V
-

2
0
2
1
 

1
4
:3

0

PHONE:  (248) 454-6300

FAX (1st. Floor):  (248) 454-6312

(248) 454-6359FAX (2nd. Floor):  

WEB SITE:  http: / /  www.hrcengr.com

SHOULDER

2' GRASS

SHOULDER

2' GRASS

1:4 MAX

FERTILIZER, SEED & MULCH

FILL WITH TOPSOIL,

Agg Base, 21AA, 6 inch, Modified")

(PAID FOR AS "Shared Use Path,

COMPACTED TO 95% MAX. DENSITY

AGGREGATE BASE, 6 INCH, CIP, 21AA

SHARED USE PATH

TYPICAL CROSS SECTION

NOT TO SCALE

20210295

11/08/2021
2

2

PLACE GEOGRID AS SHOWN

VARIES (10'- 12')

2.0% MAX.

3/8" Screenings, 4 inch")

(PAID FOR AS "Shared Use Path,

COMPACTED TO 95% MAX. DENSITY

3/8" SCREENINGS, 4 INCH, CIP, 





FRANKLIN VILLAGE
Board of Trustees

32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan  48025

R E S O L U T I O N

WHEREAS the Village Trustees desire to proceed with the development of a pedestrian pathway 
(Irving Trail) in an existing pedestrian easement between Apple Tree Lane and Irving Road in 
the northwest corner of the Village for an estimated cost of $66,000.00, and

WHEREAS the development of pedestrian trails is encouraged by the Franklin Village Master 
Plan, and 

WHEREAS Oakland County Parks and Recreation has a Trailways Grant Program which can 
provide partial funding for the development of the Irving Trail, and 

WHEREAS the grant program requires applicants to provide a local funding match of twenty-
five percent (25%) of the requested grant amount as well as to certify compliance with all grant 
program requirements, including commitment to long-term maintenance of the trail and payment 
of any and all project cost overruns.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees hereby approves Village 
participation in the Oakland County Recreation Trailways Grant Program and authorizes a 
Trailways Grant application in the amount of $ 49,500.00, and 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Village Trustees acknowledge and certify compliance 
with all grant program requirements, including a commitment to long-term maintenance of the 
trail and agree to pay any project cost overruns, and

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED the Village will provide a twenty five percent (25%) match for 
the approved grant amount in cash, force account, federal or state funds, private funds or labor or 
materials donated directly to the project in the amount of $16,500.00, and

IT IS RESOLVED the Village Administrator is authorized execute all grant related documents 
on behalf of the Village of Franklin.

Approved by the Franklin Village Board of Trustees this 14th Day of February, 2022.



!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

F R A N K L IN  V IL L A G E

L A M E S A

S C E N IC  H IL L S

24-06-176-001 24-06-176-009

24-06-130-003

24-06-126-001

19-31-376-039

24-06-127-008

24-06-129-005

24-06-129-004

24-06-151-038

24-06-129-006

24
-06

-12
9-0

01 24-06-129-008

24-06-176-008

24-06-129-007

24-
06-

131
-00

6

24
-06

-12
7-0

01
24-06-130-002

24-06-129-003

24-06-176-007

24-
06-

129
-00

2

24-06-127-004

24-06-151-003

24-06-151-039

24-06-131-004

24
-06

-13
1-0

01
24

-06
-12

7-0
05

24-06-151-004

24-
06-

131
-00

324-06-104-015

24-06-127-002

24
-06

-13
1-0

02

24
-06

-15
1-0

34

24-06-104-004

24-06-151-033

24-06-103-003

24-06-131-005

24-06-106-004

24-06-106-005

24-06-103-001
24-06-104-013

24-06-104-005

24-06-106-007

24-06-106-006

24-06-151-021

24-06-103-002

24-06-176-002

24
-06

-10
4-0

06

24-06-151-027

24-06-127-007

24-06-106-002

24-06-129-012

24
-06

-13
2-0

01

24-06-131-007

24
-06

-10
2-0

26

24-06-106-003

24-06-101-008

Franklin

W 14 Mile Rd

Irving Rd

Captains Ln

Carol Ave
Irving Trail aerial

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

D ate  C re a te d : 1 /1 4 /2 0 22

N
1 in ch  =  2 0 0  fe e t

David Coulter
Oakland County Executive

2  F o o t  C o n to u r s

5  F o o t  C o n to u r s
F E M A  B a s e  F lo o d  E le v a t io n s

F E M A  C ro ss  S e c tio n s

1 0 0  y r  -  F E M A F lo o d p la in

1 0 0  y r  ( d e ta i le d ) -  F E M A F lo o d p la in
5 0 0  y r  -  F E M A F lo o d p la in

F L O O D W AY  -  F E M A  F lo o d p la in

D is c la im e r:  T he  in fo rm a tion  p ro v id e d  h e re w ith h a s b e e n  c o m p ile d fro m  re c o rd e d
de e d s , p la ts , ta x  m a p s, su rv e ys  a n d  o th e r p u b lic  re co rds .  It is  no t a  leg a lly  re co rd e d
m a p  o r su rv e y a n d  is  n o t in te n d e d  to  b e  u s e d a s  o n e .  U s e rs  s h o uld  co n su lt th e
in fo rm a tio n  so u rce s  m e n tio n e d  a b o ve  w h e n  q u e s tio n s a ris e. F E M A F lo o p la in d a ta  m a y
no t a lw a ys  b e p re se n t o n  th e  m a p .

nkolinski
PolyLine - drain

nkolinski
Callout
Proposed Irving TrailParking and access on Irving Rd, Colony Hill, and Apple Tree Lane 

nkolinski
Text Box
Apple Tree Lane 



W 13 Mile Rd

W 14 Mile Rd

Franklin Rd

Inkster Rd

Scenic Hwy

Lincoln Dr

Bingham Rd

Wi
ng

La
ke

Rd Bingham
 Rd

In
ks

te
r R

d

W
ing

Lake Rd

Farmbrook Rd

Wellin
gto

n Rd

River Dr

Franklin Park Dr

Oak leaf L n

Cathedral Dr

Ten Hil l Rd

Woodlore Rd

Pickering Rd

Salem Rd

Hi
ck

or
y 

Ln

M il lb r ook R d

C restwood Dr

Woods ide Dr

Val l
ey

Dr

Bria rc li ff Rd

Stony River Dr

L indenm ere Dr

Brookridge Dr

V illage Ln

O ld Colony St
Whit

e Pin
e D

r

Chevio t H i l ls Dr

No tt ingham Dr

Bi rchway Dr

H elm anda le D r

Kirk Ln
Devon Ln

W
illowg r e en Dr

Timber Trl

Rosemond Dr

G l en g rov e
D r

Olde Franklin Dr

Canterbury Rd

Chisholm Trl

N Greenb riar Rd

R avi ne Dr

We l l ington St

Denn ison Rd

Holiday Dr

Woodlan d Dr

Bruce Ln

Franklin F ai rw aySt

Carol Ave

Have r fo
rd

Dr

Bingham Ln

Haly a rd R d
Oakview

W ay

Normandy Rd

Tweed Dr

Shag wood Dr

Tudor Ln

Woodlynne Dr

Wallbrook Ct

Rockri d ge
Ln

Oak hi lls Dr

Service Dr

Fa
irh

ill 
Rd

Sun se t Dr

I r ving Rd
N Cromwell Dr

Old Orchard Trl

Chelsea Ln

Rus hmo r e Cir

Lakehil ls Dr Romany Way

Pondsview
Dr

Cardinal Ln

Springridge Rd

Ce d arbrook Dr

Cold Spr ing Ln

R iverwood Dr

Meadow Dr

Eve lyn Ct

Ramble Rd

Pebblecreek Rd

Sc
en

ic 
Ln

Orino co Cir

Valleybrook Rd

E Greenwich D r

E
Stone wood

C t

S Clunb u ry Rd

Ramble w ood Dr

E Knollw o od

S Cromwell Dr

Capta i ns Ln

River Trl

O ld Court

Charles Ln

Farmbrook V il la Dr

Apple Tree Ln

Gardenway Rd

S Green b riar Rd

Wi l dbrook Dr

Priva te Lake Dr

Meadowdale St

Adair Ct

St il l Val ley Dr

River Cro s sin
g St

Corn ers
Dr

Fra
nk

lin
 C

t

Ovid Ct

Stonegate Dr
Hersheyvale Dr

Hidden Woods Dr

German Mill Rd
Kew Ct

Oak Crest Dr

Grimsby Ln

Bin gham Pointe Dr

Baff in Dr

Duval Ct

Well ington St

Valle y Dr

¬«10

Meadow Lake

Farmington Hills

Southfield

West Bloomfield

Franklin
Bingham Farms

nk

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 1/14/2022

N
1 inch = 1,600 feet

David Coulter
Oakland County Executive

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present in the map.

2 Foot Contours
5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations
FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain
100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain
FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

nkolinski
Text Box
Irving Trail Location Map 

nkolinski
Polygon

nkolinski
PolyLine - drain

nkolinski
Callout
Proposed Irving TrailThis 600 Feet of trail will provide connection for all of these house without having to travel onto the main roads



W 14 Mile Rd

Irving Dr

Colony Hl

Inkster Rd

Carol

Ovid

Garden Way

Apple T
ree L

n

Captains Ln

Scottsdale

Normandy

Trail
Parcel Boundaries

¯

0 0.1 0.20.05
MilesPr

oje
ct 

Nu
mb

er:
 20

21
02

95





PSLZ  PLLC – Certified Public Accountants 

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Oakland County, Michigan 

 
AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
For the Fiscal Year Ended  

June 30, 2021



PSLZ  PLLC – Certified Public Accountants 

 VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 Table of Contents 
 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION 

 Table of Contents 

       Page 

FINANCIAL SECTION    
 Independent Auditor's Report ................................................................................................   1-2 
 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis ...............................................................................    3-7 
 
 Basic Financial Statements: 
 
  Government Wide Financial Statements: 
 
   Statement of Net Position ............................................................................................    8 
   
 Statement of Activities .................................................................................................  9-10 
 
  Fund Financial Statements: 
      
   Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds ...................................................................... 11-12 
 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
        Fund Balance – Governmental Funds .................................................................... 13-14 
 
   Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and  
      Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the 
      Statement of Activities ..............................................................................................    15 
 
   Balance Sheet – Proprietary Fund ..............................................................................    16 
 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
        In Net Position – Proprietary Fund ............................................................................    17 
 
   Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Fund ............................................................    18 
 
   Statement of Fiduciary Net Position ...........................................................................    19 
 
   Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position ......................................................    19 
 
  Notes to Financial Statements ..........................................................................................  20-40 
 



PSLZ  PLLC – Certified Public Accountants 

 VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
 For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 Table of Contents 

 
          Page 

 Required Supplementary Information: 

     Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios ........................  41 
   
  Schedule of Village Pension Contributions .....................................................................    42 
 
  Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios ........................  43 
   
  Schedule of Village Pension Contributions .....................................................................    44 
 
 Statement of  Revenues, Expenditures and  Changes in Fund 
   Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund ........................................................  45 
  
 Statement of  Revenues, Expenditures and  Changes in Fund 
   Balance – Budget and Actual – Police Fund ............................................................  46 
 
 Statement of  Revenues, Expenditures and  Changes in Fund 
   Balance – Budget and Actual – Major Street Fund .................................................  47 
 
  Statement of  Revenues , Expenditures and  Changes in Fund 
   Balance – Budget and Actual – Local Street Fund ..................................................  48 
 
  Statement of  Revenues , Expenditures and  Changes in Fund 
   Balance – Budget and Actual – Building Departmnet Fund ..................................  49 
 
 Other Supplementary Information: 
 
  Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules: 

   Combining Balance Sheet – Nonmajor Governmental Funds ...............................  50 
 
   Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in  
      Fund Balance – Nonmajor Governmental Funds ..................................................  51 
 
    
 



PSLZ  PLLC – Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

F I N A N C I A L   S E C T I O N 
  



1 

 PSLZ PLLC  
 Certified Public Accountants 

  19500 Victor Parkway  Telephone: (734) 453-8770 
 Suite 460 Jane F. Wang, C.P.A. Fax: (734) 453-0312 
 Livonia, MI 48152 Rana M. Emmons, C.P.A. 
  Susan H. Bertram, C.P.A. 
  Deborah M. Gulledge, C.P.A. 
  _______________ 

  Leah M. Parker-Roth, C.P.A. 
  Alice Li, C.P.A. 

   
Independent Auditor's Report 

December 21, 2021 
 

To the Members of the Village Council 
Village of Franklin, Michigan 

 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Franklin, 
Michigan, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   

 
 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinions. 
 

Opinions 
 In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Franklin, Michigan, as of June 30, 2021, and 
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
 
 



2 
 

PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

Members of the Village Council 
Village of Franklin, Michigan 
December 21, 2021 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, the defined benefit pension plan trend information, and the budgetary 
comparison information, as identified in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Village of Franklin, Michigan’s basic financial statements as a whole.  The combining 
nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
information directly to underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements 
or the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
 
 Respectfully, 

   
 PSLZ PLLC 
 Certified Public Accountants 
  

 



 3 

 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The Village's annual report consists of management's discussion and analysis, 
government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, notes to the 
financial statements, required supplemental information, and other 
supplemental information. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide a broad 
overview of the Village's finances.  The government-wide financial statements 
are presented on a full accrual basis, with an emphasis on measuring all 
economic resources and not just current financial resources, as measured in the 
individual fund statements.  Two government-wide statements are provided. 
 
The statement of net position, presents information on all of the Village's assets 
and liabilities with the difference shown as net position.  Increases or decreases 
of net position from period to period provide useful information on the direction 
of the Village's financial position over time. 
 
The statement of activities provides information on how the government-wide 
net position changed during the fiscal year.  This statement provides information 
on income, expenses, and other increases or decreases in net position. 
 
Following the government-wide statements, individual fund financial statements 
are provided for the Village's major funds with one column provided for 
nonmajor funds.  These statements are grouped into governmental funds, which 
account for the cost of providing governmental-type services such as public 
safety and public works; business-type funds, which account for functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees 
and charges, and fiduciary funds, which account for assets held for outside 
parties. 
 
Reconciliation between the individual fund statements and the government-
wide financial statements is provided following the individual fund statements.  
The differences between the statement of net position and the fund-based 
balance sheet are primarily related to inclusion of capital assets and long-term 
liabilities in the government-wide statement of net position, which are not 
included in the fund-based balance sheet.  The differences between the 
statement of activities and the statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances primarily relate to the timing of reporting capital 
outlays and debt principal payments in the fund statements and a difference in 
the timing of the recognition of certain revenues and expenditures such as debt 
principal payments, and accrued employee leave time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position.  In the case of the Village of Franklin, assets exceeded liabilities 
by $10,907,691 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
 
The following table shows in a condensed format, the net position of the Village's 
governmental activities as of June 30, 2021: 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Current and other assets 4,216,038$       5,712,107$      768,338$       835,446$       4,984,376$    6,547,553$     

Capital Assets 16,243,733       15,057,361      6,650,926      6,882,046      22,894,659    21,939,407     

   Total Assets 20,459,771       20,769,468      7,419,264      7,717,492      27,879,035    28,486,960     

Deferred Outflows 574,972           428,020           -                    -                    574,972         428,020          

Current liabilities 584,551           288,368           51,281          53,795          635,832         342,163          

Long Term Debt Outstanding 15,162,417       16,120,818      1,185,000      1,370,000      16,347,417    17,490,818     

   Total Liabilities 15,746,968       16,409,186      1,236,281      1,423,795      16,983,249    17,832,981     

Deferred Inflows 563,067           288,018           -                    -                    563,067         288,018          

Net Position:

Net Investment in capital assets 5,845,735         5,551,370        5,465,926      5,512,046      11,311,661    11,063,416     

Restricted 1,440,159         3,761,342        503,207        513,713        1,943,366      4,275,055       

Unrestricted (Deficit) (2,561,186)       (4,812,428)       213,850        267,938        (2,347,336)     (4,544,490)      

   Total Net Position 4,724,708$       4,500,284$      6,182,983$    6,293,697$    10,907,691$  10,793,981$   

Village of Franklin's Net Position

  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

   
A portion of the Village’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to 
acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The Village of Franklin used these 
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending.  An additional portion of the Village’s net position, 
$1,943,366, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how 
they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position 
($2,347,336) includes $3,793,827 of net pension liability and other post 
employment benefit liabilities. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

 
The following table shows the changes of the net position during the year ended 
June 30, 2021: 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenues:

Program Revenues:

  Charges for Services 1,175,276$   999,967$      1,043,760$      1,152,832$      2,219,036$    2,152,799$    

  Operating Grants & Contrib. 455,094        432,014        -                       -                       455,094         432,014         

  Capital Grants & Contrib. 60,892          53,597          -                       112,559           60,892           166,156         

General Revenues:   

  Property Taxes 2,973,416     2,998,002     -                       -                       2,973,416      2,998,002      

  State Revenue Sharing 230,994        358,779        -                       -                       230,994         358,779         

  Investment Earnings 18,899          88,109          4,659               10,095             23,558           98,204           

  Franchise Fees 106,457        108,501        -                       -                       106,457         108,501         

Total Revenues 5,021,028     5,038,969     1,048,419        1,275,486        6,069,447      6,314,455      

Expenses:

  General Government 675,626        557,356        -                       -                       675,626         557,356         

  Public Safety 2,325,387     2,034,890     -                       -                       2,325,387      2,034,890      

  Public Works 1,218,662     1,116,443     -                       -                       1,218,662      1,116,443      

  Community Development 29,660          18,269          -                       -                       29,660           18,269           

  Recreation and Cultural 220,564        216,548        -                       -                       220,564         216,548         

  Sewer -                    -                    1,159,133        1,197,323        1,159,133      1,197,323      

  Interest on Long-Term Debt 326,705        346,580        -                       -                       326,705         346,580         

Total Expenses 4,796,604     4,290,086     1,159,133        1,197,323        5,955,737      5,487,409      

 
Change in Net Position 224,424$      748,883$      (110,714)$        78,163$           113,710$       827,046$       

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Village of Franklin - Change in Net Position  

 
The Village had an increase of $224,424 in net position in its governmental 
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, compared to a $748,883 
increase for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.  
 
Business-type Activities 
 
The Village’s business-type activities consist of the Pressure Sewer Fund.  The 
sewer system is administered by the Oakland County Water Resources 
Commission.   
 
Governmental Funds 
 
Of the Village's governmental funds, the General, Major and Local Streets, 
Building Department Fund, 2017 Debt Fund, and Road Construction Fund 
account for all significant expenditures. 
 
General Fund expenditures exceeded revenues in fiscal year 2021 by $68,071, as 
compared to revenues exceeded expenditures in fiscal year 2020 by $207,503.   



 6 

 
 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The General Fund original budgeted revenues and expenditures for fiscal year 
2021 were unchanged for the final budgeted amounts. The General Fund 
expenditures came in $27,722 over budget at fiscal year end. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
During fiscal year 2021, capital assets reflect the primarily the 2017 road 
improvement project ($1,845,092), which commenced in fiscal year 2017 and 
continued into the current fiscal year. 
 
Long-term Debt 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village had total general obligation 
bond debt outstanding of $10,995,000. The Village’s total bonded debt 
decreased by $710,000 during the current fiscal year as a result of annual debt 
payments made.  
 
Economic Factors 
 
New home development in the Village principally has been limited to the new 
homes built on lots after demolishing existing homes.  Residential additions and 
improvements have also added to the tax base.  Home sales activity has 
uncapped the values of properties which also has had a small positive impact 
on tax revenues.  Oakland County has projected that assessed property values 
on existing homes in Franklin Village will continue their ascent, and taxable 
values on those homes will also increase.  In November 2016, the electorate 
approved a millage to fund a $15 million Village road improvement project.  The 
completion of the road project and streetscape will bring all local roads to a 
good to very good rating.  This investment in infrastructure will further support the 
positive growth in property values.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 7 

Contacting the Village's Financial Management 
 
This audit of the revenues and expenditures of the Village is designed to depict 
the financial health of the Village and demonstrate the uses of Village resources.  
The audit also provides financial information to the Village’s investors and 
creditors.  If you have any questions about this report contact the Village Office 
at the Village of Franklin, 32325 Franklin Road, Franklin, Michigan 48025. 

 
 



PSLZ  PLLC – Certified Public Accountants 

B A S I C   F I N A N C I A L   S T A T E M E N T S 



  
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,983,574         $ 1,587            $ 3,985,161       
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 73,595              -                    73,595            
Due from Other Governmental Units 126,510            766,751        893,261          
Due from Other Funds 15,005              -                    15,005            
Prepaid Expenses 17,354              -                    17,354            
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 16,243,733       6,650,926     22,894,659     
Total Assets  20,459,771        7,419,264      27,879,035     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions 574,972            -                    574,972          

LIABILITIES
  Accounts Payable  281,531             46,157           327,688          
  Accrued Liabilities 147,040            -                    147,040          
  Due to Other Funds -                        5,124            5,124              
  Deposits Payable 155,980            -                    155,980          
  Noncurrent Liabilities:
     Net Pension Liability 3,900,162         -                    3,900,162       
     Other Post Employment Benefit Liability 153,283            -                    153,283          
     Compensated Absences 113,972            -                    113,972          
     Due within one year 755,000            185,000        940,000          
     Due in more than one year 10,240,000       1,000,000     11,240,000     
        Total Liabilities 15,746,968       1,236,281     16,983,249     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions 315,354            -                    315,354          
Unamortized bond premium 247,713            -                    247,713          
 563,067            -                    563,067          

NET POSITION
  Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,845,735         5,465,926     11,311,661     
  Restricted 1,440,159         503,207        1,943,366       
  Unrestricted (Deficit) (2,561,186)        213,850        (2,347,336)     
        Total Net Position $ 4,724,708         $ 6,182,983     $ 10,907,691     

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

8
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
  

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
   Governmental Activities:
        General Government $ 675,626          $ 26,851            $ 1,556              $ 25,928                 
        Public Safety 2,325,387       1,144,504       19,102            34,964                 
        Public Works 1,218,662       3,921              434,436          -                          
        Community Development 29,660            -                      -                      -                          
        Recreation and Cultural 220,564          -                      -                      -                          
        Interest on Long-Term Debt 326,705          -                      -                      -                          
            Total Governmental Activities 4,796,604       1,175,276       455,094          60,892                 

   Business-type Activities:     
        Pressure Sewer 1,159,133       1,043,760       -                      -                          

Total Primary Government $ 5,955,737       $ 2,219,036       $ 455,094          $ 60,892                 

 

General Revenues:
   Property Taxes
   State Shared Revenue
   Cable Franchise Fees
   Unrestricted Investment Earnings

        Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning

 Net Position - Ending

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Program Revenues

9
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 

  

Governmental Business-type  
Activities Activities Total

$ (621,291)         $ -                      $ (621,291)              
(1,126,817)      -                      (1,126,817)           

(780,305)         -                      (780,305)              
(29,660)           -                      (29,660)                

(220,564)         -                      (220,564)              
(326,705)         -                      (326,705)              

(3,105,342)      -                      (3,105,342)           

   
-                      (115,373)         (115,373)              

 (3,105,342)       (115,373)          (3,220,715)           

 
 

2,973,416       -                      2,973,416             
230,994          -                      230,994               
106,457          -                      106,457               
18,899            4,659              23,558                 

3,329,766       4,659              3,334,425             

224,424          (110,714)         113,710               
4,500,284       6,293,697       10,793,981           

   
$ 4,724,708       $ 6,182,983       $ 10,907,691           

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

10
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



   
 Major Local

General Police Street Street
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,509,107       $ 118,642          $ 284,550          $ 272,362          
Receivables (net of allowance     
    for uncollectibles) 63,997            3,330              -                      -                      
Due from State 57,678            -                      41,907            26,925            
Due from Other Funds 18,244            -                      192,209          -                      
Prepaid Expenditures 17,354            -                      -                      -                      

    
Total Assets $ 1,666,380       $ 121,972          $ 518,666          $ 299,287          

  
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE  

 
Liabilities:
   Accounts Payable $ 61,486            $ 68,050            $ 122,623          $ 12,179            
   Accrued and Other Liabilities 10,568            32,750            100,000          -                      
   Due to Other Funds -                      -                      1,478              -                      
   Deposits Payable -                      -                      -                      -                      
           Total Liabilities 72,054            100,800          224,101          12,179            

Fund Balances:
   Nonspendable-Prepaids 17,354            -                      -                      -                      
   Restricted for:
       Police Equipment -                      21,172            -                      -                      
       Streets -                      -                      294,565          287,108          
       Debt -                      -                      -                      -                      
       Building Department -                      -                      -                      -                      
       Rubbish Collection -                      -                      -                      -                      
       Fire -                      -                      -                      -                      
       Library -                      -                      -                      -                      
       Street Capital Projects -                      -                      -                      -                      
   Unassigned 1,576,972       -                      -                      -                      
   Total Fund Balance 1,594,326       21,172            294,565          287,108          

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 1,666,380       $ 121,972          $ 518,666          $ 299,287          
 
   
   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
   are different because:
Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
  and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred amount on bonds
Deferred amounts related to pensions
Net Pension Liabilities are not reported in the funds
Other Post Employment Benefit Liability
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
  in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2021

11
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 2017 Bonds   Other Total
Building Debt Road Governmental Governmental

Department Service Construction Funds Funds

$ 756,456          $ 118,615          $ 794,626          $ 129,216               $ 3,983,574             
     

3,418              -                      -                      2,850                   73,595                  
-                      -                      -                      -                           126,510                
-                      7,605              -                      590                      218,648                
-                      -                      -                      -                           17,354                  

     
$ 759,874          $ 126,220          $ 794,626          $ 132,656               $ 4,419,681             

  
  

$ 8,388              $ -                      $ 5,415              $ 3,390                   $ 281,531                
3,722              -                      -                      -                           147,040                

-                      -                      192,209          9,956                   203,643                
155,980          -                      -                      -                           155,980                
168,090          -                      197,624          13,346                 788,194                

-                      -                      -                      -                           17,354                  

-                      -                      -                      -                           21,172                  
-                      -                      -                      -                           581,673                
-                      126,220          -                      -                           126,220                

591,784          -                      -                      -                           591,784                
-                      -                      -                      71,927                 71,927                  
-                      -                      -                      46,793                 46,793                  
-                      -                      -                      590                      590                       
-                      -                      597,002          -                           597,002                
-                      -                      -                      -                           1,576,972             

591,784          126,220          597,002          119,310               3,631,487             

$ 759,874          $ 126,220          $ 794,626          $ 132,656                 
 

 

16,243,733           
(247,713)               

 259,618                
(3,900,162)            

(153,283)               

(11,108,972)          

$ 4,724,708             

12
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 

 Major Local
General Police Street Street

Revenues
Property Taxes $ 1,115,620        $ -                      $ -                      $ -                      
Licenses and Permits 1,427               -                      -                      -                      
Intergovernmental:    
   Federal, State and Local 231,678           19,102            255,941          178,495          
Grants 25,928             -                      -                      -                      
Charges for Services 12,625             524,724          -                      -                      
Fines and Forfeitures -                       59,208            -                      -                      
Special Assessments -                       340,210          -                      -                      
Interest 4,948               159                 7,698              -                      
Other 119,786           8,158              965                 -                      
     Total Revenues  1,512,012         951,561          264,604           178,495          

    
Expenditures    
Current:
  General Government  540,578            -                      -                      -                      
  Public Safety -                       1,830,846       -                      -                      
  Public Works -                       -                      122,554          131,594          
  Community Development 29,660             -                      -                      -                      
  Recreation and Cultural -                       -                      -                      -                      
  Other Functions 103,081           -                      -                      -                      
  Debt Service:
      Principal -                       -                      -                      -                      
      Interest and Other Charges -                       -                      -                      -                      
  Capital Outlay 8,447               47,267            491,146          465,840          
    Total Expenditures 681,766           1,878,113       613,700          597,434          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures 830,246           (926,552)         (349,096)         (418,939)         
     
Other Financing Sources (Uses)     
Transfers In -                       893,738          -                      -                      
Transfers Out (898,317)          -                      -                      -                      
   Total Other Financing
     Sources (Uses) (898,317)          893,738          -                      -                      

Net Change in Fund Balance (68,071)            (32,814)           (349,096)         (418,939)         

Fund Balance - Beginning 1,662,397        53,986            643,661          706,047          

Fund Balance - Ending $ 1,594,326        $ 21,172            $ 294,565          $ 287,108          

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

13
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
  

 2017 Bonds  Other Total
Building Debt Road Governmental Governmental

Department Service Construction Funds Funds

$ -                      $ 1,059,125       $ -                      $ 798,671              $ 2,973,416                
194,933          -                      -                      2,540                  198,900                   

     
-                      664                 -                      498                     686,378                   
-                      -                      -                      -                          25,928                     

51,795            -                      -                      36                       589,180                   
-                      -                      -                      -                          59,208                     
-                      -                      -                      -                          340,210                   
-                      2,085              3,983              26                       18,899                     
-                      -                      -                      -                          128,909                   

 246,728           1,061,874        3,983               801,771               5,021,028                

  
  

-                      -                      -                       -                           540,578                   
144,710          -                      -                      415,289              2,390,845                

-                      -                      -                      200,264              454,412                   
-                      -                      -                      -                          29,660                     
-                      -                      -                      220,564              220,564                   
-                      -                      -                      -                          103,081                   

-                      710,000          -                      -                          710,000                   
-                      349,225          -                      -                          349,225                   
-                      -                      1,002,215       -                          2,014,915                

144,710          1,059,225       1,002,215       836,117              6,813,280                

102,018          2,649              (998,232)         (34,346)               (1,792,252)              
     
     

-                      26                   -                      4,553                  898,317                   
-                      -                      -                      -                          (898,317)                 

-                      26                   -                      4,553                  -                              

102,018          2,675              (998,232)         (29,793)               (1,792,252)              

489,766          123,545          1,595,234       149,103              5,423,739                

$ 591,784          $ 126,220          $ 597,002          $ 119,310              $ 3,631,487                

14
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds $ (1,792,252)    

 

Capital Outlay 2,014,915     
Capital Outlay under threshold (22,467)         
Depreciation Expense (806,076)       

Change in Net Pension Liability (101,857)       

Change in Other Post Employment Benefit Liability 227,268        

Principal Repayments 710,000        
Bond Refunding Amortization 22,520          
Increase in Compensated Absences (27,627)         

Change in net position in governmental activities $ 224,424        

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current
period.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net
effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related
items.

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

15
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 Enterprise Fund
Pressure 

Sewer Fund
ASSETS  

Current Assets:  
   Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,587                   
   Due from Other Governments 766,751               
       Total Current Assets 768,338               
 
Capital Assets 11,630,384           
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (4,979,458)           
Net Capital Assets 6,650,926             

Total Assets $ 7,419,264             

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current Liabilities:
    Accounts Payable $ 46,157                 
    Due to Other Funds 5,124                   
    Current Portion of Long-term Debt 185,000               
       Total Current Liabilities 236,281               

Long-Term Liabilities:
    General Obligation Bonds Payable 1,000,000             

 
          Total Liabilities 1,236,281             

Net Position:
    Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,465,926             
    Restricted for Improvements 503,207               
    Unrestricted 213,850               
       Total Net Position 6,182,983             

Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 7,419,264             

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2021

16
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Enterprise Fund
Pressure 

Sewer Fund
Operating Revenues:
Sewage Disposal Charges $ 840,596               
Miscellaneous 250                      
      Total Operating Revenues 840,846               

Operating Expenses:
Sewage Treatment 242,737               
Inspections 6,743                   
General and Administrative 74,771                 
System Control 79,121                 
System Maintenance and Engineering 4,406                   
Pump Station Maintenance 486,697               
Depreciation and Amortization 231,120               
Professional Fees 1,183                   
      Total Operating Expenses 1,126,778             

Operating Income (Loss) (285,932)              

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Earned 4,659                   
Reserve for Improvements 202,914               
Interest Expense (32,355)                
      Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 175,218               

Net Income (Loss) (110,714)              

Net Position, Beginning 6,293,697             

Net Position, Ending $ 6,182,983             

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN

17
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Enterprise Fund
Pressure 

Sewer Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
   Receipts from customers and users $ 913,234               
   Payments to Suppliers (903,296)              
      Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 9,938                   

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
   FINANCING ACTIVITIES
   Principal Paid on debt (185,000)              
   Interest Paid on debt (32,355)                
   Reserve for Improvements 202,914               
      Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
           Financing Activities (14,441)                

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
   Interest Earned 4,659                   
      Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 4,659                   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 156                      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 1,431                   

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 1,587                   
 
 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash  
   Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
   Operating Income (Loss) $ (285,932)              
       Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
           Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
                Depreciation Expense 231,120               
                (Increase) Decrease in Due from Other Governments 67,264                 
                Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds 5,124                   
                Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable (7,638)                  
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 9,938                   

 

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Cash Flows

18
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Other
Postemployment   

Benefits Trust Custodial  
Fund Fund Total

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ -                       $ 9,881             $ 9,881             
Investments held with MERS 766,765            -                     766,765         
     Total Assets 766,765             9,881              776,646         

LIABILITIES:
Due to Other Funds -                       9,881             9,881             

NET POSITION :
Restricted for postemployment   

    benefits other than pensions $ 766,765            $ -                 $ 766,765         
 

 
  

Other
Postemployment   

Benefits Trust Custodial  
Fund Fund Total

Additions:
Net Investment income:
   Net increase in fair value of investments $ 174,153            $ -                     $ 174,153         
     Total Additions 174,153             -                  174,153         

Deductions:
Administrative Expenses 1,240                -                     1,240             

Net Increase in Fiduciary Net Position 172,913            -                     172,913         

Net Position - Beginning of year 593,852            -                     593,852         

Net Position - End of year $ 766,765            $ -                     $ 766,765         

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2021

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

19
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

20 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

20

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 A. Reporting Entity 
 
  The Village of Franklin, Michigan, is governed by a seven member elected Village 

Council, that consists of a Village President and six Council members.  Services are 
provided to approximately 3,150 residents in the areas of police, fire, refuse removal, 
street maintenance, and sewer. 

 
  As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements 

present the Village of Franklin.  The Village does not have any component units to 
report, entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.   

  
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the 
statement of changes in net position) report information on all of the nonfiduciary 
activities of the primary government.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity 
has been removed from these statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for 
support.   
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) 
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, 
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment.  Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, 
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements.  Major individual governmental funds and major individual 
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

  
  C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation  

 
  The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
and fiduciary fund financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.   

 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

21 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

21

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
  

  C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation -
Continued 

   
  Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  
Revenues are considered to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end 
of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are 
recorded only when payment is due. 

 
  Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal 

period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as 
revenues of the current fiscal period.  Only the portion of special assessments 
receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to 
accrual as revenue of the current period.  All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the Village. 

 
  Governmental Funds 
  The Village reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

   The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund.  It accounts for all 
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund. 

 
   The Police Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for police contract 

revenues and police expenditures. 
 
   The Major Street and Local Street Funds are special revenue funds used to 

account for the repair, maintenance, and construction of the Village’s streets as 
identified by the State of Michigan Department of Transportation. 

 
   The Building Department Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for 

permit and inspection fees and the related expenditures. 
 

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for 
the payment of principal and interest on the Village’s general obligation debt.  
The Village annually levies a voter approved millage for repayment of the bonds. 
 
The Road Construction Fund is used to account for the bond proceeds from the 
2017 and 2018 road bonds and the related construction expenditures. 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

22 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

22

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation – 

Continued 
    
  In addition, the Village reports on the following fund types: 
   The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to 

expenditures for specific purposes (not including expendable trusts or major capital 
projects). 

 
  Proprietary Funds 
  Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement 

focus and use the accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.  
Proprietary funds include the enterprise fund types. 

 
   Enterprise Funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and 

operated in a manner similar to private business or where the Village Council has 
decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net 
income is necessary for management accountability.  The Village has one 
enterprise fund, which is the Pressure Sewer Fund. 

 
  Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the government in a lrustee capacity or as 
custodian on behalf of others.   

 
  As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 

government-wide financial statements.   Amounts reported as program revenues 
include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges 
provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments.  Internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.  Likewise, general 
revenues include all taxes.  When both restricted and unrestricted resources are 
available for use, it is the Village’s policy to use restricted resources first, then 
unrestricted resources as needed. 

 
  Estimates 
  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 

accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

 
 
 
 
 

  



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

23 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

23

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 

 D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity 
 
  1. Deposits and Investments 
 
   The Village's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, 

demand deposits and short term investments with original maturities of three months 
or less from the date of acquisition.  State statutes authorize the Village to invest in 
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper of certain investment grades, 
and deposits of Michigan commercial banks.  Investments for the Village are 
recorded at fair value. 

 
  2. Receivables and Payables 

   Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements 
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds" 
(i.e. the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e. 
non-current portion of interfund loans).  Any residual balances outstanding between 
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” 

    
   Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset 

by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate 
that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available 
financial resources. All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of 
allowance for uncollectible accounts, which are recorded at $4,620 at June 30, 
2021. 

 
  3. Capital Assets 

   Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets 
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if 
purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair 
market value at the date of donation.  The costs of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are 
not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized 
as projects are constructed.  Interest incurred during the construction phase of 
capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of capitalized value of 
the assets constructed.  Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, 
as well as the component units, is depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following estimated useful lives: 

 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

24 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

24

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 

 D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity – Continued 
 
  3. Capital Assets  – Continued 
    Assets  Years 
    Land Improvements 10-20 
    Buildings and Improvements 10-50 
    Sewer System    50 
      Street and Road Improvements    25 
      Storm Drains    40 
      Machinery & Equipment   5-20 
     Vehicles     5 
    
  4. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
 
   The deferred outflows of resources which are recorded in the Statement of Net 

Position represent consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so 
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources or expensed until that future 
period.  The deferred charge on refunding bonds reported in the Statement of Net 
Position results from a difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its 
reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life 
of the refunded or refunding debt.  The Village also has a deferred amount related 
to the net pension liability.  The deferred inflows of resources reflect the unamortized 
bond premium on the recently issued road bonds to be amortized over the life of 
the bonds. 

 
  5.  Compensated Absences 
 
   In accordance with contracts negotiated with the various employee groups of the 

Village and the Village’s internal policy, individual employees have vested rights 
upon termination of employment to receive payment for unused vacation and sick 
leave under formulas and conditions specified in the contracts. All sick and 
vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements. The long-term portion of compensated absences related 
to the governmental funds is a liability recorded in the Statement of Net Position. 

 
6. Long-term Obligations 

 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported 
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund type statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts 
as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the effective interest method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount.  Bond issuance costs are reported as 
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

25 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

25

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity – Continued 
 
6. Long-term Obligations – Continued 
 

   Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due.  For 
other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to be financed from 
expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability of a 
governmental fund.  The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the 
Statement of Net Position.  Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from 
proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in those funds. 

 
  7. Fund Equity 
 
   In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following 

components of fund balance: 
 
   Nonspendable – Amounts that are not in spendable form or are legally or 

contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 

   Restricted – Amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties, constitutional 
provisions, or enabling legislation for use for a specific purpose. 
 

  Committed – Amounts that have been formally set aside by the Village Council for 
use for a specific purpose.  Commitments are made and can be rescinded only 
via resolution of the Village Council. 

 
  Assigned – Intent to spend resources on specific purposes expressed by the Village 

Council. 
 

   Unassigned – This is the residual classification for the general fund.  This 
classification represents fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or 
assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.  

 
II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY  
 A. Budgetary Information 

  The Village is legally subject to the budgetary control requirements of the State of 
Michigan P.A. 621 of 1978 (Uniform Budgeting Act).  The following is a summary of the 
requirements of this act: 

  a. Budgets must be adopted for the General and Special Revenue Funds. 
  b. Budgets must be balanced. 
  c. Budgets must be amended as necessary. 
  d. Public hearings must be held prior to adoption. 
  e. Expenditures cannot exceed budget appropriations. 
   f. Expenditures must be authorized by a budget appropriation prior to being incurred. 

 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

26 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

26

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY – Continued 
 
 A. Budgetary Information – Continued 
 

The Village follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in 
these financial statements: 

 
1. The Village Charter requires not less than one regular council meeting per month.  

By the first meeting in April, a proposed operating budget must be submitted to the 
Village Council for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1.  The operating 
budget includes proposed expenditures and means of financing them for the 
upcoming year. 

  2. A public hearing and adoption of the budget is required on or before June 30. 
3. On or before June 15, the tax rate must be set and the budget is legally enacted 

through passage of a budget resolution (general appropriation act). 
4. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the 

General and Special Revenue Funds.  Budgets for these funds are prepared and 
adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP).  The General Fund and Special Revenue Fund budgets are adopted at the 
activity level. 

  5. Budget appropriations lapse at year end. 
  6. The Village Council may authorize supplemental appropriations (budget 

amendments) during the year.   
 
 B. Compliance with P.A. 621 of 1978 
 
  1. Deficit Fund Balance 
 
   None of the Village’s funds have a deficit fund balance as of June 30, 2021. 

 
  2. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Budgetary Funds 

 
The budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted at the 
activity level. The expenditures in excess of budget appropriations as of June 30, 
2021 are as follows: 

Final Excess Over 
Budget Actual Appropriation 

General Fund:
  Village Council 140,671$         164,186$         23,515$            
  Administration 201,040           205,157           4,117                
  Planning and Zoning 28,630             29,660             1,030                
  Cable Board 40,000             46,045             6,045                
Major Street Fund 144,600           613,700           469,100            
Local Street Fund 165,800           597,434           431,634            
Building Dept. Fund 129,689           144,710           15,021                 
 
       



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

27 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

27

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS  
 
 A. Deposits and Investments 
 
  Under State law, the Village is permitted to invest in deposits with Michigan commercial 

banks, savings and loans and credit unions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury, and 
corporate bonds and commercial paper with certain investment grades. 

 

  The following information, as required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board Statement number 40 is presented, regarding the Village's deposits and 
investments: 
 

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Village's 
deposits may not be recovered.  Neither State law nor the Village's investment 
policy requires consideration of custodial credit risk.  As of June 30, 2021, the Village's 
book balance of its deposits was $3,995,042.  The bank balance was $3,953,192 of 
which $3,653,184 was uninsured.   

              
  A reconciliation of cash on the financial statements is as follows: 
 
   Cash and Cash Equivalents per: 
    Statement of Net Position  $  3,985,161  
    Statement of Fiduciary Net Position      9,881 
       Total   $ 3,995,042 

   
    

Credit Risk.  State law limits investments in commercial paper, corporate bonds, and 
mutual bond funds to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical 
rating organizations.  The Village has no investment policy that would further limit its 
investment choices.   
 
Interest Rate Risk.  The Village does not have a formal investment policy that limits 
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising 
from increasing interest rates.  The Village’s deposits and investments consisted of 
checking, savings, and certificates of deposit. 

     
  Concentration of Credit Risk.  The Village's investment policy places no limit on the 

amount the Village may invest in any one issuer.   
 
  Investments in Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value per Share.  The Village has 

funds held in the MERS Retiree Health Funding Vehicle (RHFV) for its OPEB 
obligations.  The MERS RHFV is a fully diversified portfolio combining stocks and 
bonds with alternative asset classes, which is managed and monitored by MERS 
investment managers.  As of June 30, 2021 the fair value of the Village’s funds in 
MERS RHFV is $766,765. 

 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

28 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

28

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
 B. Capital Assets 

 
 Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending 
Governmental Activities: Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital Assets, not depreciated:
  Land $ 211,717       $ -                 $ -                $ 211,717         

Capital Assets, being depreciated:
   Roads 18,172,328  1,945,093   -                20,117,421    
   Storm Drainage 611,166       -                 -                611,166         
   Buildings and Improvements 1,662,616    -                 -                1,662,616      
   Land Improvements 74,990         -                 -                74,990           
   Machinery & Equipment 93,318         -                 -                93,318           
   Furniture & Fixtures 116,292       -                 -                116,292         
   Vehicles 124,050       47,355        13,304      158,101         

20,854,760  1,992,448   13,304      22,833,904    
Less: Accumulated Depreciation:
   Roads (4,872,756)   (726,061)    -                (5,598,817)     
   Storm Drainage (299,915)      (15,722)      -                (315,637)        
   Buildings & Improvements (517,532)      (37,661)      -                (555,193)        
   Land Improvements (55,568)        (2,403)        -                (57,971)          
   Machinery & Equipment (86,852)        (1,687)        -                (88,539)          
   Furniture & Fixtures (105,865)      (3,008)        -                (108,873)        
   Vehicles (70,628)        (19,534)      (13,304)     (76,858)          

(6,009,116)   (806,076)    (13,304)     (6,801,888)     
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, net $ 15,057,361  $ 1,186,372   $ -                $ 16,243,733    

Depreciation expense was charged on the Statement of Activities as follows:
Governmental Activities: 
   General Government $ 20,619          
   Public Safety 43,674          
   Public Works 741,783        
Total Governmental Activities $ 806,076       

 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

29 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

29

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 

B. Capital Assets – Continued 
 

Beginning Ending 
Business-type Activities: Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital Assets, being depreciated:
   Sewer System $ 11,630,384  $ -              $ -            $ 11,630,384  
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (4,748,338)   (231,120)     -            (4,979,458)   
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, net $ 6,882,046    $ (231,120)     $ -            $ 6,650,926    

   
C. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 
 

  The composition of interfund receivables, payables and transfers as of June 30, 2021, is 
as follows:    

  

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Major Street Fund $ 1,478            
General Fund Wastewater Mgt Fund 2,507            
General Fund Pressure Sewer Fund 5,124            
General Fund Custodial Fund 9,135            
Major Street Fund Road Construction Fund 192,209        
2017 Bonds Debt Fund 2011 Bonds Debt Fund 7,449            
Library Fund Custodial Fund 590               
2017 Bonds Debt Fund Custodial Fund 156               

$ 218,648        

 
 
 

  

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount
Police Fund General Fund $ 893,738        
Waste Water Mgt Fund General Fund 4,579            
2017 Bond Debt Service 2011 Bond Debt Service 26                 

$ 898,343        

General Fund transfer to Police Fund and to Waste Water Management
Fund represent operating transfers.
Debt Service Fund transfer represents closeout of 2011 Bond debt service
fund.
  

 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

30 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

30

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
 D. Long-Term Debt 
 

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the Village for the year ended 
June 30, 2021: 

Add: Less:
Balance Additional Retirements Balance Due 
July 1, Debt and Payments June 30, Within
2020 Incurred on Debt 2021 One Year

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds 11,705,000$ -$                710,000$     10,995,000$  755,000$   
Compensated Absences 86,345          27,627        -                   113,972         73,069       

Total Governmental Activities 11,791,345$ 27,627$      710,000$     11,108,972$  828,069$   

Business-type Activities:
2017 Sewer Bonds 1,370,000$   -$                185,000$     1,185,000$    185,000$   

Total Business-type Activities 1,370,000$   -$            185,000$     1,185,000$    185,000$   

 
  
 The following is a summary of general obligation debt outstanding (excluding 

compensated absences) of the Village as of June 30, 2021:  
  

 

Number of Interest Maturing Principal
Issues Rate Through Outstanding

Governmental Activities:
   G.O. Bonds 2 2.00-3.00% 2032 10,995,000$   

Business-type Activities:
   G.O. Bonds 1 1.70-3.60% 2027 1,185,000$     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

31 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

31

III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS – Continued 
 
 D. Long-Term Debt – Continued 

 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation debt 
outstanding as of June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

 

 

Year Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest
2022 $ 755,000       $ 325,725       $ 185,000       $ 28,840         
2023 795,000       302,700       190,000       24,955         
2024 840,000       278,400       195,000       20,680         
2025 885,000       252,750       200,000       16,000         
2026 935,000       225,675       205,000       11,000         

2027-2031 5,500,000    667,275       210,000       5,670           
2032 1,285,000    28,950         -                   -                   

$ 10,995,000  $ 2,081,475    $ 1,185,000    $ 107,145       
  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

   
 
 
 E. Property Taxes 

  Property tax assessments are determined (Tax Day) as of each December 31.  Taxes 
are levied on July 1 of the following year.  These taxes are due on August 31 with the 
final collection date of February 28 before they are added to the county delinquent 
tax roll.  The Village bills and collects its own property taxes which are recognized in 
the current year as revenue in accordance with guidelines of the State of Michigan. 

 
   The Village is permitted by State law to levy taxes up to $20 per $1,000 of equalized 

valuation for general governmental services.  The following is a summary of the tax rates 
levied on the 2020 tax roll:          

             
              Rate  
     Purpose          Levied     
   Operating     2.5758 
   Library       .6038 
   Fire     1.1394 
   Rubbish         .5109 

 Road Debt                           2.8932 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

32 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

32

IV. OTHER INFORMATION 
 
 A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 
  Plan Description 
  The Village contributes to the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Michigan 

(MERS), which is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers 
all full time employees of the Village. MERS was established by the Michigan Legislature 
in 1945 and is administered by a nine member Retirement Board.  MERS issues a publicly 
available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the system.  That report may be obtained at 
mersofmich.com. 

 
  Benefits Provided 
  The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their 

beneficiaries, as established by Public Act 427 of 1984, as amended.  The Plan covers all 
full-time employees of the Village including union and non-union employees.  
Employees hired before May 1, 2010 who retire are entitled to benefits calculated as 2.5 
percent of the employee’s three-year final average compensation times the 
employee’s years of service with a maximum of 80 percent of final average 
compensation.  Normal retirement age is 60.  Deferred retirement benefits vest after 10 
years of credited service but are not paid until the date retirement would have 
occurred if the member had remained an employee. 

 
  Benefit terms, within the guidelines established by MERS, are generally established and 

amended by authority of the Village Council, generally after negotiations of these 
terms with the affected unions.  Police employee benefit terms may be subject to 
binding arbitration in certain circumstances. 

 
  Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

At the December 31, 2020 measurement date, the following employees were covered 
by the benefit terms: 
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 13 
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 7  
Active Plan Members    12 
  Total Employees covered by MERS 32 
 

  Contributions 

  The State of Michigan Constitution, Article 9, Section 24, requires that financial benefits 
arising on account of employee services rendered in each year be funded during that 
year.  Accordingly, MERS retains an independent actuary to determine the annual 
contribution.  The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal to the 
actuarially determined rate, as established by the MERS retirement board.  The 
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of 
benefits earned by plan members during the year, with an additional amount to 
finance any unfunded accrued liability.  The employer may establish contribution rates 
to be paid by its covered employees. 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

33 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

33

IV. OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Continued 
 

  For the year ended June 30, 2021, the average active employee contribution rate was 
4 percent of gross wages for police employees, 5 percent of gross wages for police 
employees hired after May 1, 2010, and 2 percent of gross wages for general 
employees.  The Village’s contribution rate was a monthly flat rate of $24,607 for police 
employees hired before May 1, 2010, and 4.28% of annual covered payroll for police 
employees hired after May 1, 2010. 

    
  Net Pension Liability 

The net pension liability reported at June 30, 2021 was determined using a measure of 
the total pension liability and the plan net position as of December 31, 2020.  The 
December 31, 2020 total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
performed as of that date. 
 
Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows: 
 

Total Pension Plan Net Net Pension
Changes in Net Pension Liability Liability Position Liability

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 8,314,874    $ 4,365,952   $ 3,948,922    

   Service Cost 80,565         -                 80,565         
   Interest 616,051       -                 616,051       
   Contributions-Employer -                   302,990      (302,990)      
   Contributions-Employee -                   37,524        (37,524)        
   Net Investment Income -                   542,078      (542,078)      
   Differences between expected
     and actual experience (90,302)        -                 (90,302)        
   Change in Assumptions 277,497       -                 277,497       
   Benefit Payments, including refunds (498,427)      (498,427)    -                   
   Administrative Expenses -                   (8,664)        8,664           
          Net Changes 385,384       375,501      9,883           
 
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ 8,700,258    $ 4,741,453   $ 3,958,805    
 

Increase (Decrease)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

34 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

34

IV. OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Continued 
 
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 
At June 30, 2021, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of

Source Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
   earnings on pension plan investments $ 145,624       $ -                 
Difference between expected and actual experience -                   15,885        
Change in actuarial assumptions 361,126       -                 
Employer contributions to the plan subsequent
   to the measurement date 160,884       -                 
          Total $ 667,634       $ 15,885        

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows.  These amounts are exclusive of the 
employer contributions to the plan made subsequent to the measurement date 
($160,884), which will impact the net pension liability in fiscal year 2022, rather than 
pension expense. 
 

Years Ending
June 30 Amount

2022 $ 201,022      
2023 111,978      
2024 134,546      
2025 43,319        

 
   
  Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2020 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included 
in the measurement: 

 
Inflation    2.50% 
Salary increases               3.00% 
Investment rate of return  7.35% 

   
 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

35 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

35

IV. OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Continued 
 
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table of a 50 
percent male and 50 percent female blend with rates multiplied by 105%, the RP-2014 
Employee Mortality Tables, and the RP-2014 Juvenile Mortality Tables. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2020 valuation were based on 
the results of a 5 year experience study from 2013 through 2018, which was 
completed in 2020. 

 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60 percent.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employee 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer 
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 
determined contribution rates and the employee rate. 

 
  Projected Cash Flows 

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to 
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and 
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. 

 
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was not projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and 
inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a model in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return 
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The 
target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return as of December 
31, 2020, the measurement date, for each major asset class are summarized in the 
following table: 
 
 
 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

36 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

36

IV. OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

A. Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Continued 

  

 Long-term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 60% 5.25%
Global Fixed Income  20%  1.25%
Private Investments 20% 7.25%
  

 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net pension liability of the Village, calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.60 percent, as well as what the Village’s net pension liability would be 
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 
percentage point higher than the current rate: 

  

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.60%) (7.60%) (8.60%)
 
Net Pension Liability $ 5,016,016    $ 3,958,805     $ 3,080,235    
  
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued financial report.  For the purposes of measuring the net pension 
liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pension and pension expense, information about the plan’s fiduciary net position and 
addition to/deduction from fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they are reported by the plan.  The plan uses the economic resources 
measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting.  Investments are stated 
at fair value.  Contribution revenue is recorded as contributions are due pursuant to 
legal requirements.  Benefit payments and refunds of employee contributions are 
recognized as expense when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 

 
 B. Defined Contribution Pension Plan  

The Village provides pension benefits to its administrator and police chief through a 
defined contribution plan.  In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on 
amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings.  As established by 
negotiation with the Village Administrator, the Village contributes 6% of employee’s 
gross earnings and the employee contributes 2% of earnings.  As established by 
negotiation with the Village Police Chief, the Village contributes 6% of employee’s 
gross earnings and employee contributes 2% of earnings. During the current fiscal year 
the Village’s contributions amounted to $25,614.   

 

 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

37 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

37

IV. OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

 C. Other Postemployment Benefits 

  Plan Description 
 The Village provides health care benefits to police retirees in accordance with their 

respective labor contracts.  The Village includes these retirees and their dependents in 
its insured health care plan.  Expenditures for post employment health care benefits 
are recognized as the insurance premiums become due.  The Village has established 
a trust with the Michigan Employees’ Retirement System (MERS) Retiree Health Funding 
Vehicle to fund future premiums.   

 
  Benefits Provided 
  The Village provides healthcare, including prescription drug benefits for retirees and 

their spouses.  Benefits are provided by a third-party insurer.   
 
  Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
  At the June 30, 2021 valuation date, the following employees were covered by the 

benefit terms: 
 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 4 
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -  
Active Plan Members   10 
  Total 14 

 
  Contributions 
  Active service members are not required to make contributions to the plan. The Village 

has no obligation to make contributions in advance but are being financed on a “pay-
as-you-go” basis. At the fund level, the expense is recognized by the Village as the 
payments to the employees are made.   

 
  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
  For the purpose of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and 

deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (if applicable), and OPEB expenses, have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported for the Village.  For this 
purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with 
the benefit terms. 

    
   
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

38 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

38

IV. OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

 C. Other Postemployment Benefits - Continued 

 
Changes in Net OPEB Liability 
 
The components of the change in the net OPEB liability are summarized as follows: 
 

Total OPEB Plan Net Net OPEB
Changes in Net OPEB Liability Liability Position Liability

Balance at July 1, 2020 $ 974,403       $ 593,852      $ 380,551       

   Service Cost 78,317         -                 78,317         
   Interest on total OPEB liability 71,247         -                 71,247         
   Employer Contributions -                   70,987        (70,987)        
   Net Investment Income -                   174,153      (174,153)      
   Effect of Economic/Demographic Losses (132,932)      -                 (132,932)      
   Administrative Fees -                   (1,240)        1,240           
   Benefit Payments (70,987)        (70,987)      -                   
          Net Changes (54,355)        172,913      (227,268)      
 
Balance at June 30, 2021 $ 920,048       $ 766,765      $ 153,283       
 

Increase (Decrease)

 
 
   

Actuarial Assumptions 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2021.  The following actuarial assumptions were applied: 
 

  

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-age normal
  
Salary Increases 4.0%
Investment Rate of Return 7.0%
Retirement Age Police eligible at age 50 with 25 years of service,

until age 65 for retiree and spouse.
Mortality Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables
Health care trend rates 4.9% initially grading to 4.3%  

 
 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.00% based on the 
expected return of assets expected to be available to pay plan benefits.   
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

39 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

39

IV. OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

 C. Other Postemployment Benefits - Continued 
   

Investment Rate of Return 
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined by 
adding expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected 
volatility and correlation.  Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return as of the June 
30, 2021 measurement date for each major asset class included in the OPEB plan’s 
target asset allocation are summarized in the following table: 
 

 Long-term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Global Equity 60% 2.97%
Global Fixed Income  20%  0.48%
Private Investments 20% 1.40%
  

   
  Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Village, calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the Village’s net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point 
higher than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
 
Net OPEB Liability $ 209,977            $ 153,283            $ 103,189            
  
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Village, as well as what the Village’s 
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare trends rates that are 1 
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost 
trend rates: 

Healthcare Cost  
1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase

 
Net OPEB Liability $ 119,225            $ 153,283            $ 193,300            
  

 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2021 
 
 

40 
PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

40

IV. OTHER INFORMATION - Continued 
 

D. Risk Management 
 
 The Village of Franklin is a member of the Michigan Municipal Liability and Property 

Pool for its general liability insurance coverage and a member of the Michigan 
Municipal Workers Compensation Fund for its workers compensation coverage.  The 
Village pays annual premiums to the pools.  The pools are self-sustaining through 
member premiums, and each carries reinsurance through commercial companies for 
claims in excess of the pool loss reserve fund. 

 In the event that a single loss should exceed the amount of protection afforded by 
the pool loss reserve fund, reinsurance, or other insurance carried by the pools, or in 
the event that a series of losses should deplete or exhaust the loss reserve fund and 
reinsurance, the payment of valid losses shall be the obligation of the individual 
member or members of the respective pool against whom the claim was made.  No 
such event has occurred with the Village of Franklin and the pools to which it belongs 
in any of the past three fiscal years. 

 
 

E. Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements 
 
Leases 
In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB 
Statement No. 87, Leases, which requires recognition of certain lease assets and 
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases. This Statement is 
based on the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. 
The Village is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on its financial statements.  
The Statement is effective beginning with the Village’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, 
but was extended to June 30, 2022 with the issuance of GASB Statement No. 95, 
Postponement of the Effective Date of Certain Authoritative Guidance. 
 



PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R E Q U I R E D   S U P P L E M E N T A R Y   I N F O R M A T I O N



2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Total Pension Liability:
Service Cost $ 80,565        $ 81,790        $ 78,058        $ 76,762        $ 70,949        $ 66,552        $ 64,225        
Interest 616,051      608,002      578,481      576,103      564,687      541,871      522,516      
Change in Assumptions  277,497       306,009       -                  -                 -                 296,513       -                 
Expected and actual experience diff. (90,302)      8,416          190,533      (186,431)     (88,219)      (17,164)      -                 
Benefit payments, including refunds (498,427)     (496,941)     (462,913)     (411,800)     (403,453)     (395,580)     (310,968)     
   Net Change in Total Pension Liability  385,384       507,276       384,159       54,634         143,964       492,192       275,773      

Total Pension Liability, Beginning of year 8,314,874   7,807,598   7,423,439   7,368,805   7,224,841   6,732,649   6,456,876   

Total Pension Liability, End of year $ 8,700,258   $ 8,314,874   $ 7,807,598   $ 7,423,439   $ 7,368,805   $ 7,224,841   $ 6,732,649   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - Employer $ 302,990      $ 303,171      $ 258,057      $ 234,135      $ 214,117      $ 201,796      $ 190,253      
Contributions - Employee 37,524        35,908        31,594        28,804        27,121        26,211        26,472        
Net Investment Income 542,078      535,168      (165,535)     519,394      417,990      (57,859)      241,195      
Administrative Expenses (8,664)        (9,211)        (8,313)        (8,232)        (8,256)        (8,556)        (8,851)        
Benefit payments, including refunds (498,427)     (496,941)     (462,913)     (411,800)     (403,453)     (395,580)     (310,968)     
   Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 375,501      368,095      (347,110)     362,301      247,519      (233,988)     138,101      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, Beg. of year  4,365,952   3,997,857    4,344,967    3,982,666    3,735,147    3,969,135    3,831,034   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, End of year $ 4,741,453   $ 4,365,952   $ 3,997,857   $ 4,344,967   $ 3,982,666   $ 3,735,147   $ 3,969,135   

Village's Net Pension Liability - Ending $ 3,958,805   $ 3,948,922   $ 3,809,741   $ 3,078,472   $ 3,386,139   $ 3,489,694   $ 2,763,514   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percent
   of Total Pension Liability 54.5% 52.5% 51.2% 58.5% 54.0% 51.7% 59.0%

Covered Employee Payroll $ 774,574      $ 797,665      $ 737,921      $ 683,173      $ 627,738      $ 588,864      $ 568,238      

Village's Net Pension Liability as a Percent
   of Covered Employee Payroll 511.1% 495.1% 516.3% 450.6% 539.4% 592.6% 486.3%

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Required Supplemental Information

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Last Ten Fiscal Years (schedule is built prospectively upon implementation of GASB 68)

41



  
20

21
20

20
20

19
20

18
20

17
20

16
20

15
20

14
20

13
20

12
 A

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

n
$

32
1,

76
8

   
 

$
28

3,
82

2
   

 
$

24
9,

37
2

   
 

$
23

2,
45

2
   

 
$

22
1,

90
3

   
 

$
19

7,
43

6
   

 
$

19
5,

99
8

   
 

$
18

4,
68

8
   

 
$

17
7,

03
7

   
 

$
16

0,
12

2
   

 
C

on
tri

b
ut

io
ns

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

a
ct

ua
ria

lly
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

n
35

9,
80

7
   

 
31

1,
48

2
   

 
27

7,
03

2
   

 
23

2,
45

2
   

 
22

1,
90

3
   

 
19

7,
43

6
   

 
19

5,
99

8
   

 
18

4,
68

8
   

 
17

7,
03

7
   

 
16

0,
12

2
   

 

C
on

tri
b

ut
io

n 
Ex

ce
ss

 (D
ef

ic
ie

nc
y)

$
38

,0
39

   
   

$
27

,6
60

   
   

$
27

,6
60

   
   

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

Pa
yr

ol
l

$
77

4,
57

4
   

 
$

79
7,

66
5

   
 

$
73

7,
92

1
   

 
$

68
3,

17
3

   
 

$
62

7,
73

8
   

 
$

58
8,

86
4

   
 

$
56

8,
23

8
   

 
$

72
3,

04
9

   
 

$
65

5,
30

0
   

 
$

74
5,

92
3

   
 

 
 

C
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
 a

s a
 P

er
ce

nt
a

ge
 o

f
 

 
 

 
   

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

Pa
yr

ol
l

46
.5

%
39

.0
%

37
.5

%
34

.0
%

35
.3

%
33

.5
%

34
.5

%
25

.5
%

27
.0

%
21

.5
%

A
ct

ua
ria

l v
a

lu
a

tio
n 

in
fo

rm
a

tio
n 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

e 
d

et
er

m
in

a
tio

n 
of

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

ns
:

V
a

lu
a

tio
n 

D
a

te
A

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
b

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 c

a
lc

ul
a

te
d

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
b

er
 3

1 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r, 

w
hi

ch
 is

 1
8 

m
on

th
s p

rio
r t

o 
th

e
b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f t

he
 fi

sc
a

l y
ea

r i
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

re
 re

q
ui

re
d

.

M
et

ho
d

s a
nd

 a
ss

um
p

tio
ns

 u
se

d
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s:
A

ct
ua

ria
l C

os
t M

et
ho

d
En

try
-a

ge
 n

or
m

a
l

A
m

or
tiz

a
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d
Le

ve
l p

er
ce

nt
a

ge
 o

f p
a

y,
 o

p
en

Re
m

a
in

in
g 

A
m

or
tiz

a
tio

n 
Pe

rio
d

15
 y

ea
rs

A
ss

et
 V

a
lu

a
tio

n 
M

et
ho

d
5 

ye
a

r s
m

oo
th

ed
 m

a
rk

et

In
fla

tio
n

2.
50

%

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
s

3.
00

%
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
fla

tio
n

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

a
te

 o
f R

et
ur

n
7.

35
%

Re
tir

em
en

t A
ge

Ex
p

er
ie

nc
e 

b
a

se
d

 ta
b

le
s o

f r
a

te
s t

ha
t a

re
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
to

 th
e 

ty
p

e 
of

 e
lig

ib
ilit

y 
co

nd
iti

on

M
or

ta
lit

y
50

%
 M

a
le

 - 
50

%
 F

em
a

le
 b

le
nd

 o
f t

he
 R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
A

nn
ui

ta
nt

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

b
le

s, 
w

ith
 ra

te
s m

ul
tip

lie
d

 b
y 

10
5%

;
RP

-2
01

4 
Em

p
lo

ye
e 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

b
le

s; 
a

nd
 R

P-
20

14
 J

uv
en

ile
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
b

le
s.

VI
LL

A
G

E 
O

F 
FR

A
N

KL
IN

Re
qu

ire
d 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f V
ill

ag
e 

Pe
ns

io
n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

La
st

 Te
n 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
rs

42



2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability:
  Service Cost $ 78,317           $ 78,317           $ 77,541           $ 73,547           
  Interest 71,247           20,912           20,037           19,074           
  Effect of Economic/Demo Losses (132,932)        -                    -                    -                    
  Benefit Payments (70,987)          -                    -                    -                    
        Net Change in Total Pension Liability  (54,355)           99,229            97,578            92,621           

Total OPEB Liability, Beginning of year 974,403         875,174         777,596         684,975         

Total OPEB Liability, End of year $ 920,048         $ 974,403         $ 875,174         $ 777,596         

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
   Contributions - Employer $ 70,987           $ -                    $ -                    $ 5,898             
   Net Investment Income 174,153         16,840           16,657           38,954           
   Administrative Fees (1,240)            (1,181)            (1,181)            -                    
   Benefit payments, including refunds (70,987)          -                    -                    -                    
        Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 172,913         15,659           15,476           44,852           

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, Beginning of year  593,852          578,193          562,717          517,865         

Plan Fiduciary Net Position, End of year $ 766,765         $ 593,852         $ 578,193         $ 562,717         

Village's Net OPEB Liability - Ending $ 153,283         $ 380,551         $ 296,981         $ 214,879         

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percent
   of Total OPEB Liability 83.3% 60.9% 66.1% 72.4%

Covered Employee Payroll  n/a  n/a  n/a  n/a

Village's Net OPEB Liability as a Percent
   of Covered Employee Payroll n/a n/a n/a n/a

Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Last Ten Fiscal Years (schedule is built prospectively upon implementation of GASB 75)

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN

43



 
 

 

20
21

20
20

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

20
13

20
12

 A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n
$

43
,4

98
   

   
$

43
,4

98
   

   
$

43
,4

98
   

   
 

$
43

,4
98

   
   

 
$

73
,5

47
   

   
 

$
72

,6
71

   
   

 
$

64
,8

92
   

   
 

$
64

,8
92

   
   

$
56

,3
72

   
  

$
94

,5
58

   
   

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 th
e

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

8,
22

2
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

89
8

   
   

   
73

,6
86

   
   

 
72

,6
71

   
   

 
60

,9
72

   
   

 
60

,6
73

   
   

57
,4

85
   

  
38

,1
75

   
   

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

Ex
ce

ss
 (D

ef
ic

ie
nc

y)
$

(4
3,

49
8)

   
 

$
(3

5,
27

6)
   

 
$

(4
3,

49
8)

   
   

$
(3

7,
60

0)
   

   
$

13
9

   
   

   
   

$
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

$
(3

,9
20

)
   

   
 

$
(4

,2
19

)
   

   
 

$
1,

11
3

   
   

$
(5

6,
38

3)
   

 

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 P

ay
ro

ll
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 

n/
a

 
n/

a
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

s a
 P

er
ce

nt
a

ge
 o

f
 

 
 

 
   

C
ov

er
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 P

ay
ro

ll
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a
n/

a

A
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

la
tiv

e 
to

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

:
Va

lu
at

io
n 

D
at

e
A

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s a
re

 c
al

cu
la

te
d

 a
s o

f J
un

e 
30

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
.

M
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s:
A

ct
ua

ria
l C

os
t M

et
ho

d
En

try
-a

ge
 n

or
m

al
In

fla
tio

n
2.

5%
Sa

la
ry

 In
cr

ea
se

s
4.

0%
In

ve
st

m
en

t R
at

e 
of

 R
et

ur
n

7.
0%

He
al

th
ca

re
 c

os
t t

re
nd

 ra
te

s
8.

0 
pe

rc
en

t, 
gr

ad
ua

lly
 d

ec
re

as
in

g 
to

 4
.0

%
 in

 .2
5%

 in
cr

em
en

ts

Re
tir

em
en

t A
ge

Po
lic

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 a

t a
ge

 5
0 

w
ith

 2
5 

ye
ar

s o
f s

er
vi

ce
,

un
til

 a
ge

 6
5 

fo
r r

et
ire

e 
an

d 
sp

ou
se

.
M

or
ta

lit
y

RP
-2

01
4 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
es

 

VI
LL

A
G

E 
O

F 
FR

A
N

KL
IN

Re
qu

ire
d 

Su
pp

le
m

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f V
ill

ag
e 

O
PE

B 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
La

st
 Te

n 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs

44



 Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:
  Property Taxes $ 1,108,000       $ 1,108,000       $ 1,115,620       $ 7,620              
  Licenses and Permits 4,000              4,000              1,427              (2,573)             
  Intergovernmental - Federal/CDBG 7,000              7,000              -                      (7,000)             
  Intergovernmental - State 255,162          255,162          231,678          (23,484)           
  Grants 43,000            65,042            25,928            (39,114)           
  Charges for Services 12,950            12,950            12,625            (325)                
  Interest Earnings 5,000              5,000              4,948              (52)                  
  Franchise Fees 115,000          133,594          106,457          (27,137)           
  Other Revenues 10,000            10,000            13,329            3,329              
     Total Revenues 1,560,112       1,600,748       1,512,012       (88,736)           

  
Expenditures:   
General Government:
  Village Council 36,675            140,671          164,186          (23,515)           
  Administration 224,111          201,040          205,157          (4,117)             
  Clerk 91,097            94,630            95,430            (800)                
  Treasury 6,100              2,904              3,344              (440)                
  Village Hall 61,500            73,176            72,461            715                 
     419,483          512,421          540,578          (28,157)           

Community and Economic Development:
  Planning and Zoning 26,970            28,630            29,660            (1,030)             

Other Functions:
  Historic District Commission 4,000              1,539              1,166              373                 
  Community Development Block Grant 7,000              7,000              650                 6,350              
  Main Street 20,000            20,000            20,000            -                      
  NEXT Contribution 10,000            10,000            10,000            -                      
  Cable Board 40,000            40,000            46,045            (6,045)             
  Website 3,100              3,100              2,313              787                 
  Insurance 22,300            22,907            22,907            -                      
 106,400          104,546          103,081          1,465              

Capital Outlay 17,100            8,447              8,447              -                      

     Total Expenditures 569,953          654,044          681,766          (27,722)           
  

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures  990,159           946,704           830,246           (116,458)         

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
  Transfers Out (1,078,158)      (1,034,703)      (898,317)         136,386          
 (1,078,158)      (1,034,703)      (898,317)         136,386          

Net Change in Fund Balance  (87,999)           (87,999)            (68,071)           19,928            

Fund Balance - July 1 1,662,397       1,662,397       1,662,397       -                      

Fund Balance - June 30 $ 1,574,398       $ 1,574,398       $ 1,594,326       $ 19,928            

Budgeted Amounts

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

45
PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
 Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
State Grants & Training $ -                   $ -                   $ 19,102           $ 19,102            
Charges for Services 550,393        550,393        524,724         (25,669)           
Fines -                   -                   24,244           24,244            
Drug Forfeitures -                   -                   34,964           34,964            
Special Assessments 340,032        340,032        340,210         178                 
Interest -                   -                   159                159                 
Other -                   -                   8,158             8,158              
       Total Revenues 890,425        890,425        951,561         61,136            

    
Expenditures:     
Police Officers 1,652,795     1,652,795      1,616,753      36,042            
Supplies & Contractual Services 44,928          44,928          23,872           21,056            
Drug Forfeitures -                   -                   14,981           (14,981)           
Communications 76,629          76,629          68,504           8,125              
Insurance 74,900          74,900          62,482           12,418            
Vehicles and Equipment 50,120          50,120          20,821           29,299            
Maintenance and Utilities 21,279          23,463          23,433           30                   
Capital Outlay 47,932          47,932          47,267           665                 
      Total Expenditures 1,968,583     1,970,767     1,878,113      92,654            

 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues  
 Over Expenditures (1,078,158)    (1,080,342)    (926,552)        153,790          

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In 1,078,158     1,078,158     893,738         (184,420)         

1,078,158     1,078,158     893,738         (184,420)         
    

Net Change in Fund Balance -                   (2,184)           (32,814)          (30,630)           
    

Fund Balance, July 1 53,986          53,986          53,986           -                     
    

Fund Balance, June 30  $ 53,986          $ 51,802          $ 21,172           $ (30,630)           

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Police Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts

46
PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
 Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental-State $ 150,000        $ 150,000        $ 255,941         $ 105,941          
Interest 5,000            5,000            7,698             2,698              
Other 1,000            1,000            965                (35)                  
       Total Revenues 156,000        156,000        264,604         108,604          

    
Expenditures:     
Road Maintenance 86,500          86,500           70,866           15,634            
Road Construction 5,000            5,000            491,146         (486,146)         
Traffic Services 1,500            1,500            8,029             (6,529)             
Winter Maintenance 50,000          50,000          41,576           8,424              
Administration 1,600            1,600            2,083             (483)                
      Total Expenditures 144,600        144,600        613,700         (469,100)         

 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues  
 Over Expenditures 11,400          11,400          (349,096)        (360,496)         

Fund Balance, July 1 643,661        643,661        643,661         -                     
    

Fund Balance, June 30  $ 655,061        $ 655,061        $ 294,565         $ (360,496)         

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Major Street Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts

47
PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
 Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental-State $ 125,000        $ 125,000        $ 164,436         $ 39,436            
Metro Authority 5,000            5,000            14,059           9,059              
       Total Revenues 130,000        130,000        178,495         48,495            

    
Expenditures:     
Road Maintenance 81,000          81,000           58,046           22,954            
Road Construction 40,000          40,000          465,840         (425,840)         
Traffic Services 3,200            3,200            29,889           (26,689)          
Winter Maintenance 40,000          40,000          41,576           (1,576)            
Administration 1,600            1,600            2,083             (483)               
      Total Expenditures 165,800        165,800        597,434         (431,634)         

 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues  
 Over Expenditures (35,800)         (35,800)         (418,939)        (383,139)         

Fund Balance, July 1 706,047        706,047        706,047         -                     
    

Fund Balance, June 30  $ 670,247        $ 670,247        $ 287,108         $ (383,139)         

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Local Street Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts

48
PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



  
 Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revenues:
Licenses and Permits $ 122,000        $ 122,000        $ 194,933         $ 72,933            
Charges for Services 3,500            3,500            51,795           48,295            
       Total Revenues 125,500        125,500        246,728         121,228          

    
Expenditures:     
Safety Inspections 129,689        129,689         144,710         (15,021)          

 
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues  
 Over Expenditures (4,189)           (4,189)           102,018         106,207          

Fund Balance, July 1 489,766        489,766        489,766         -                     
    

Fund Balance, June 30  $ 485,577        $ 485,577        $ 591,784         $ 106,207          

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Building Department Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts

49
PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



 
 

PSLZ  PLLC - Certified Public Accountants 

 
 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

O T H E R   S U P P L E M E N T A R Y   I N F O R M A T I O N 
 



Debt Service
                                                  Garbage   Fund  

and Rubbish  Waste Water 2011 Bonds
Collection Fire Library Management Debt Service Total

ASSETS

Cash  $ 72,197         $ 49,570         $ -                   $ -                     $ 7,449             $ 129,216       
Accounts Receivable -                   -                   -                   2,850             -                     2,850           
Due from Other Funds -                   -                   590              -                     -                     590              

Total Assets $ 72,197         $ 49,570         $ 590              $ 2,850             $ 7,449             $ 132,656       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
   Accounts Payable  $ 270              $ 2,777           $ -                   $ 343                $ -                     $ 3,390           
   Accrued and Other Liabilities -                   -                   -                   -                     -                     -                   
   Due to Other Funds -                   -                   -                   2,507             7,449             9,956           
   Deposits -                   -                   -                   -                     -                     -                   
       Total Liabilities 270              2,777           -                   2,850             7,449             13,346         

Fund Balance:
   Restricted for Building Dept. -                   -                   -                   -                     -                     -                   
   Restricted for Rubbish Collection 71,927         -                   -                   -                     -                     71,927         
   Restricted for Fire -                   46,793         -                   -                     -                     46,793         
   Restricted for Library -                   -                   590              -                     -                     590              
       Total Fund Balance 71,927         46,793         590              -                     -                     119,310       

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 72,197         $ 49,570         $ 590              $ 2,850             $ 7,449             $ 132,656       

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2021
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

50

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Debt Service
Garbage   Fund  

and Rubbish  Waste Water 2011 Bonds
Collection Fire Library Management Debt Service Total

Revenues:
Property Tax Revenue $ 162,951       $ 415,289       $ 220,431       $ -                     $ -                     $ 798,671       
Intergovernmental-State 120              247              131              -                     -                     498              
Licenses and Permits -                   -                   -                   2,540             -                     2,540           
Charges for Services 36                -                   -                   -                     -                     36                
Interest -                   -                   -                   -                     26                  26                
       Total Revenues 163,107       415,536       220,562       2,540             26                  801,771       

Expenditures:
Public Safety -                   415,289       -                   -                     -                     415,289       
Public Works:       
   Sanitation 189,628       -                   -                   -                     -                     189,628       
   Septic Inspection -                   -                   -                   10,636           -                     10,636         
Culture and Recreation -                   -                   220,564       -                     -                     220,564       
       Total Expenditures 189,628       415,289       220,564       10,636           -                     836,117       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
 Over Expenditures (26,521)        247              (2)                 (8,096)           26                  (34,346)        

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
   Transfers In -                   -                   -                   4,579             -                     4,579           
   Transfers Out -                   -                   -                   -                     (26)                (26)               
Total Other Financing Sources(Uses) -                   -                   -                   4,579             (26)                4,553           

Net Change in Fund Balance (26,521)        247              (2)                 (3,517)           -                     (29,793)        

Fund Balance - July 1 98,448         46,546         592              3,517             -                     149,103       

Fund Balance - June 30 $ 71,927         $ 46,793         $ 590              $ -                     $ -                     $ 119,310       

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

51

PSLZ PLLC - Certified Public Accountants



Street Scape Project Review

as of 12/31/2021

2017 - 2021 Cash Flow

402 - Streetscape Fund 202 - Major Street Fund 203 - Local Street Fund Total

Bond Proceeds 13,847,587.07                                         

Interest Earned 51,181.73                                                

Capital Outlay - Cash Paid (13,085,479.12)                                       (955,472.19)                                             (635,338.82)                                           (14,676,290.13)      

Transfer to Local Streets (210,271.38)                                             14,910,376.82       Total Capital expenses below

Overpayment received from Major Streets FY 2021 192,209.00                                              234,086.69             

Cash Balance 12/31/2021 795,227.30                                              234,086.69             FY 2022 expenses owed to general checking

Repayment to Major Streets (192,209.00)                                             * 0.00                         

FY 2022 expenses owed to general checking (234,086.69)                                             *

Cash Remaining 368,931.61                                              

Total Expenses per general ledger

402 - Streetscape Fund 202 - Major Street Fund 203 - Local Street Fund Total

2017 239,169.00                                              52,261.00                                                172,731.00                                             464,161.00             

2018 7,573,074.91                                           7,573,074.91          

2019 3,662,723.07                                           3,662,723.07          

2020 613,712.59                                              613,712.59             

2021 1,002,215.29                                           504,038.87                                              462,607.82                                             1,968,861.98          

through 12/31/2021 228,671.19                                              399,172.08                                              627,843.27             

13,319,566.05                                         955,471.95                                              635,338.82                                             14,910,376.82       

Total Expenses by Vendor

402 - Streetscape Fund 202 - Major Street Fund 203 - Local Street Fund Total

Asphalt Specialists 1,083,255.31                                           809,294.32                                              316,173.00                                             2,208,722.63          

Cadillac Asphalt 10,367,783.64                                         10,367,783.64       

Hubbell, Roth, and Clark 1,414,412.67                                           69,464.63                                                175,402.45                                             1,659,279.75          

Land Design 2,077.50                                                  67,636.09                                               69,713.59               

Nowak & Fraus 275,630.75                                              76,713.00                                                56,060.00                                               408,403.75             

Peter Basso 20,067.28                                               20,067.28               

DTE 140.00                                                      140.00                    

Vigilante Security 9,649.93                                                  9,649.93                 

WRC 1,123.75                                                  1,123.75                 

Bonding Costs 165,492.50                                              165,492.50             

13,319,566.05                                         955,471.95                                              635,338.82                                             14,910,376.82       

* Repayment made on 2/1/2022



R E S O L U T I O N 
Village of Franklin Board of Trustees 

FY 2021-22 BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

WHEREAS, regulations of the Michigan Department of Treasury require local units of 

government to make periodic amendments to the adopted annual budget to align revenues 

and expenditures with actual experiences that may exceed budgeted amounts, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village staff has been working with a financial consultant to upgrade our 

budgeting processes and assure compliance with Treasury guidelines,  and  

 

WHEREAS, a detailed report of recommended budget adjustments is attached hereto, and 

summarized as follows: 

• General Fund Revenues (101-000) increase . . . . . . . . . . . . .  175,503 

Revised G.F. Total Revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,628,842 

  

• Village Council Expenditures (101-101) increase  . . . . . . . . .    40,965 

• Village Clerk Expenditures (101-215) increase   . . . . . . . . . .       5,595 

• Treasury/General  Office Exp. (101-253) increase . . . . . . . .       1,267 

• Building and Grounds Exp. (101-265) increase . . . . . . . . . . .    21,850 

• Community Programs Exp. (101-747) increase . . . . . . . . . . .      2,031 

• General Insurance Exp. (101-851) increase . . . . . . . . . . . . . .         610 

• Transfer to Wastewater Fund (101-000) increase  . . . . . . . .      8,459 

• Total Increase in G.F. Exp.  . . . . . . . .     90,777 

Decrease in Use of General Fund Balance . . . . . . . . (84,726) 

            Revised Ending General Fund Balance 6/30/2022. . . . . . . 1,285,614 

 

• Major Street Fund Revenues (202) increase. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  252,366 

• Major Street Fund (202-451) Expenditure increase  . . . . . . .  399,172  

o Revised Ending Major Street Fund Balance . . . . . . . . . . . . .     2,559 

 

• Street Project Fund (402-000) Revenue Increase. . . . . . . . . .      1,200 

• Street Project Fund (402-900-812) Expenditure Inc. . . . . . . .  478,383 

• Street Project Fund (402-900-821) Expenditure Inc. . . . . . . .  118,289 

Total Increase in Street Fund Expenditures . . . . . . . .  596,672 

Revised ending Street Fund Balance. . . . . . .    1,530 

 

• Wastewater Fund (542-000) Revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 225,804 

• Wastewater Fund (542-371) Storm Sewer Expense  . . . . . . .  225,804  

• Revised ending Wastewater Fund Balance . . . .      0 



Attachment – Plant-Moran VOF Proposed Budget Amendment 12.31.2021 
 

NOW THEREFORE, it is resolved that the amendments proposed for the Village of Franklin FY 

2021-22 operating budget as summarized above and more fully described in the attached 

budget document are hereby approved as proposed. 

 

Approved this 14th day of February, 2022 

 

 



Form Updated 08/11/21

CIVIC EVENTS PERMIT 

NAME OF EVENT:   

ORGANIZATION:    
APPLICANT: 
CONTACT NAME:  ________________________PHONE #:_____________Email:___________________ 
DATE(S) OF EVENT    ___________________________________________________________________ 
TIME OF EVENT 
DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF EVENT & LOCATION (Please fill below.  Attach separate sheet if needed):

WHERE WILL PARTICIPANTS PARK? 

 Are You Requiring Any Street Closure?      

Please Attach a Map Showing Proposed Street Closure 

Will a tent larger than 120 sq. ft. be used during this event? If yes, Building Permit Required Building 
Permit attached?       
Temporary Sign Needed? Are You Requiring a Banner Over Franklin Road? 
Sign application attached?  (Banner Policy Attached)

 Have You Held This Event Here Before?            Expected Number of Participants _________ 
Does Your Organization Have any Affiliation with the Village of Franklin?    
If yes, what is the affiliation? _______________________________________________________________       
Applicant further agrees that the Village may require reimbursement of Village incurred costs associated with Civic Event 
Permit (e.g. Police overtime, cleanup, damage to public property…etc.) 

If Banner requested, attach copy of insurance certificate.
In consideration for this permit, the applicant agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law. To release, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Village of Franklin, 

the Franklin- Bingham Fire Department and their elected and appointed officials, boards, councils, commissions, employees, and volunteers from any liabilities, 

damages, losses, suits, claims, expenses, attorney fees and costs that arise from any injury or property damage relating to use of Village property by the Applicant or 

Applicant’s employees, members, volunteers, contractors, agents, invitees, licensees, guests, attendees or participants.  It is further agreed that the Applicant shall 

supply the Village of Franklin and DTE Energy with a certificate of insurance evidencing commercial general liability insurance, with an insurance carrier licensed and 

admitted to do business in Michigan, naming the Village, its elected and appointed officials, boards, councils, commissions, employees, volunteers and the property 

owner of 32654 Franklin and Franklin-Bingham Fire Department if a banner displayed, as additional insured in a form and with coverage and coverage limits 

acceptable to the Village. 

________________________   _______________ 

Authorized Signature        Date 

Village of Franklin  

32325 Franklin Road 

Franklin, MI 48025 

248-626-9666 Office

248-626-0538 Fax



Updated 06/23/2021 

1 

VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN 

Road Banner Policy 

Installation of any ropes, wires, signs or banners over or across a public road or other public place in the 
Village of Franklin shall require permission from the Village Council and shall comply with the following: 

TYPE 
Road banners may be permitted only for non-commercial, non-political, non-profit, community or civic 
events that will be open to the general public.  Banners relating to private events or private business, or 
containing commercial advertising or political or religious messages are not permissible. 

APPLICATION 
Persons or groups requesting the installation of banners must complete a Civic Events Permit.  The 
completed Civic Events Permit must be filed with the Village Clerk.  With submission of the Permit, the 
applicant must provide a commercial general liability insurance certificate to the Village Clerk evincing the 
coverages required by this policy. 

DISTRIBUTION 
When a completed application is filed with the Village Clerk, the Clerk shall refer it to the Building Official, 
the Police Department and the Fire Department for review before presenting it to the Village Council for 
approval. 

CALENDAR 
The Village Clerk shall keep a calendar of requested and scheduled installations and removals and their 
locations. 

RECOMMENDATION 
After receiving the application and reviewing the specifications, location and request dates, the Building 
Official shall recommend whether to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the applicant’s request, 
subject to final decision by the Village Council. 

INSTALLATION/REMOVAL 
After approval of the application, the banner shall be provided to the Fire Department who will install and 
remove the banner at the approved location(s) during weekday regular business hours.  Applicants must 
provide a sufficient number of two-inch steel screw type of carabiners and nylon rope for the installation 
of the banner. 

INSURANCE 
The applicant shall provide and carry commercial general liability insurance, including premises and 
completed operations, through companies licensed and admitted to do business in Michigan.  This 
insurance shall provide protection from all claims of damage or injury, including death, to persons and 



2 

Updated 06/23/2021 

property which may arise out of, result from or be caused by applicant’s banner installation, with 
occurrence and aggregate limits of not less than $1,000,000. 

The Village of Franklin and the Franklin-Bingham Fire Department, the owner of 32654 Franklin Road, and 
their officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers shall be named as additional insureds and this 
coverage shall be endorsed on the certificate and policy.  The following statement must be inserted into 
the description portion of the insurance certificate. 

The Village of Franklin and the Franklin-Bingham Fire Department, Golfdale LLC (3878 
Long Meadow Lake, Lake Orion MI  48359) and their officials, officers, employees, 
agents, and volunteers are additional insureds.  This coverage is primary to the Village 
and the Fire Department and not contributing or pro rata with any other insurance or 
similar protections which is or may be available to or carried by the Village or Fire 
Department. 

The certificate shall state (30) thirty-days advance written notice shall be provided to the Village Clerk in 
the event of cancellation, renewal, or material change in the coverage. 

The insurance shall be in effect during the installation of the banner, while the banner is hanging and 
during the removal of the banner and shall include the poles to which the banner is attached. 

HOLD HARMLESS 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the applicant agrees to hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 
Village and the Fire Department, and their officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers against all 
lawsuits, demands, claims, judgments, cost of repair or replacement of any damaged poles or electrical 
equipment, costs, losses, attorney fees and expenses resulting therefrom. 



Updated 06/23/2021 

3 

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR BANNER INSTALLATION: 

1. Combined length of banner and rope shall be a maximum of 100 ft.

2. The four (4) corners shall be reinforced and have grommets on each corner.

3. The banner shall have four (4) ropes of equal length.

4. The banner shall have snaps a minimum of two (2) ft. apart.

5. The banner shall have a minimum of ten (10) wind “u” slits in two (2) rows, with a minimum of

five (5) slits in each row, for a eighteen (18’) ft. banner.

6. Banners are to be a width which will meet minimum clearance for public highways.  It is suggested

that banners be no wider than thirty (30”) inches to meet the roadway clearance of eighteen (18’)

ft.

7. Banner must be made with a durable, weather-resistant, non-paper fabric.  Contact the Building

Official before ordering banners to ascertain whether material is suitable.

G 
R 
O 
M
E
T 

G
R
O
M
E
T 

Max 30” 

Width 

Max 30” 

Width 

BANNER 
Snaps 

(Top & Bottom) 

Max. Banner Length 18 Feet 

Max. Length of banner and rope 100ft. 

WIND SLITS 



 

Delhi Township 
2101 Aurelius Rd. 
Suite 2A 
Holt, MI 48842 
517-694-7760 

Detroit 
535 Griswold St. 
Buhl Building, Ste 1650 
Detroit, MI 48226 
313-965-3330 

Grand Rapids 
1925 Breton Road SE  
Suite 100 
Grand Rapids, MI 49506 
616-454-4286 

Howell 
105 W. Grand River 
Howell, MI 48843 
517-552-9199 

Jackson 
401 S. Mechanic St. 
Suite B 
Jackson, MI 49201 
517-292-1295 

Kalamazoo 
834 King Highway 
Suite 107 
Kalamazoo, MI 49001 
269-665-2005 

Lansing 
215 S. Washington SQ 
Suite D 
Lansing, MI 48933 
517-292-1488 

Y:\202107\20210745\06_Corrs\Proposal\20210806_Proposal_StWMaintProgram.docx 

MAILING: PO Box 824 
Bloomfield Hills, MI  48303-0824 
 
SHIPPING: 555 Hulet Drive 
Bloomfield Hills, MI  48302-0360 
 
PHONE: 248-454-6300 
WEBSITE:  hrcengr.com 

August 06, 2021 

 

Village of Franklin 

32325 Franklin Road 

Franklin, Michigan 48025 

 

Attention: Village President and Council Trustees  

 Roger Fraser, Village Administrator 

 

Re: Proposal for Professional Design Engineering Services HRC Job No. 20210745.86 

 Storm Sewer Maintenance Services Contract (RFP) 

 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to allow Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC) to submit this proposal for 

professional design engineering services.  We understand that the Village wishes to embark on an annual Storm 

Sewer Maintenance Program as it pertains to the Village’s storm water assets (i.e., sewer pipes, drainage 

structures, outfalls, etc.).  In accordance with recent discussions between HRC and the Village, as Consulting 

Engineers for the Village, HRC has prepared the proposal as per the following guidelines: 

 

1) Develop a Request for Proposal (RFP) for a Storm Sewer Maintenance Services Contract and solicit 

bids from prospective contracting firms, complete with maps, details and technical specifications, to 

perform annual Village-wide storm sewer maintenance services, including sewer televising, cleaning, 

and grouting, lining, and/or replacement, as required, for a program duration of three (3) years with 

optional one (1) year extensions, and 

 

2) The first year’s work – 2021 – would entail the preparation of maps, details and specifications for a 

proposed Storm Sewer Maintenance Program within the downtown area which would include sewer 

televising, cleaning, and grouting, lining, and/or replacement, as required, for all assets within the 

Franklin Road storm sewer system (between 14 Mile and Scenic Hwy), the Carol Street drain (from 

Carol Street dead end in the FCA field to the Franklin Branch of the River Rouge outfall east of 

Bowden). 

 

Background: 

 

In accordance with the Village President’s email request in April 2021, HRC provided a map of the Village’s 

storm structures, outfalls and pipe for the entire Village as well as a zoomed in map of downtown Franklin Road 

and the surrounding area.   (See maps attached).  Mr. Lamott had communicated with the State Representative 

Kyra Bolden’s staff about potential funding to inspect, clean and repair Village-owned storm sewers that were 

not rehabilitated as part of the recent Franklin Road Streetscape project.  That project’s consultants, Nowak & 

Fraus, Inc. sent HRC their plans from the streetscape project early this year; however, the plans were not clear 

as far as which of the structures and pipe were rehabilitated and/or cleaned as part of their project.  We do know 

that additional storm structures were added along the downtown area to accommodate the new 

streetscape.  Nowak & Fraus, Inc. stated they would give us a breakdown later when the record drawings are 

complete. 

 



 

 

 

 

Y:\202107\20210745\06_Corrs\Proposal\20210806_Proposal_StWMaintProgram.docx 

Village Council/Mr. Roger Fraser 
August 6, 2021 

HRC Job Number 20210745 
Page 2 of 5 

 

Further, as similarly stated in our proposal for the implementation of drainage studies for four (4) areas that 

experienced significant flooding during the June and July rain events, the Village has great concerns with the 

flooding occurrences that have occurred this summer, in particular, along Franklin Road, where several sections 

were impassable during to the recent flooding occurrence. 

 

Development of Contractor RFP’s: 

 

Based on the aforementioned, we are of the understanding that the Village would like to have a bid package 

prepared to investigate, evaluate and clean the storm sewer pipes and outfalls and to administer an improvement 

project for rehabilitation of the storm water assets, as required.   

 

From our GIS records, the total number of known manholes and catch basins in the Village are 94 and 34, 

respectively, with 30 and 13 of them, respectively, being in the vicinity of downtown Franklin and the Carol 

Street Drain.  Further, the total length of known storm sewer pipes in the Village is approximately 10,800 lft. 

with 3,300 lft. being in the vicinity of downtown Franklin and the Carol Street Drain.  Finally, there are 86 total 

outfalls in the Village, with only 1 in the downtown area (at the end of the Carol Street Drain); however, a cost 

to inspect these will not be included herein as these inspections are done as part of the MS4 Program. 

 

With this, HRC will prepare the sewer inspection (televising, cleaning) and rehabilitation (grouting, lining, 

replacement) contract provisions, the associated bid specifications, GIS maps, insurance and bond requirements, 

and bid the Village-wide project.  The Sewer Maintenance Services Contract will be set up with the following 

expectations: 

 

1. The Village, with HRC’s assistance, will take bids and award a three (3) year Contract to a sewer 

maintenance contractor so the work could commence in Fall, 2021, if required. 

 

2. The new 3-year Contract would be bid and awarded with the flexibility and understanding of the 

contractor that the Contract may be extended an additional one (1) to two (2) year period. 

 

3. The first year’s work – 2021 – would include work for all storm water assets within the downtown area, 

which includes the Franklin Road storm sewer system (between 14 Mile and Scenic Hwy) and the Carol 

Street drain (from Carol Street dead end in the FCA field to the Franklin Branch of the River Rouge 

outfall east of Bowden). 

 

4. The Village will need to establish a budget that will be allocated each year, including contingency and 

engineering costs.  A list of sewers to be investigated and structures to be rehabilitated (based on HRC 

inspection of them) would be compiled each January (or at another time as per the Village 

Administrator) and given to the contractor to match the budget for that fiscal year. 

 

5. HRC will perform inspection of the storm manholes and catch basins using Manhole Assessment 

Certification Program (MACP) ratings.  The selected contractor would be responsible for rehabilitation 

of storm structures, as per HRC’s direction. 

 

6. The contractor will be expected to provide a log and video (on flash drive, external hard drive, or cloud-

based delivery) of all sewers before and after any type of rehabilitation upon project completion and 

before final payment is made. 

 

7. The Village and HRC will require the contractor to provide unit prices for pipe sizes ranging from 12” 

to 36” in diameter with the understanding that the majority of the sewers are 12”, 15” and 36” (Carol 

Street Drain) for each year of the proposed Program. 



 

 

 

 

Y:\202107\20210745\06_Corrs\Proposal\20210806_Proposal_StWMaintProgram.docx 

Village Council/Mr. Roger Fraser 
August 6, 2021 

HRC Job Number 20210745 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 

Scope of Design Engineering Services and Fees: 

 

Based on the above expectations for the Sewer Maintenance Services Contract, we offer the proposed contractor 

RFP preparation costs and timeline as indicated below.  As part of the process, we would also develop a 

contractor prequalification specification, evaluate all submittals, and provide written recommendations on 

contractor selection.  The tasks, time frames, and estimates of cost to develop the contractor RFPs are as follows: 

 

1. Prepare the Request for Proposals and Prequalification Requirements, Statement of Qualifications, 

Sewer Lining Contract Provisions, Bid Specifications, Maps (GIS), Insurance and Bond Requirements:  

HRC would complete this task utilizing our standard specifications format and requirements as a basis 

within two (2) months at a cost not to exceed $8,500.  Included under this task is the following: 

 

a. Notify/coordinate this project with Utility Agencies to assist in avoiding future conflicts. 

b. Access asset inventory/database and record drawings in GIS system and identify the sewer 

sections to be included in the program. 

c. Prepare preliminary Construction Documents and Cost Estimates and provide them to the 

Village for review. 

d. Conduct Design Coordination Meetings at the beginning of the project and at 50% Construction 

Document Completion Stages, if required. 

e. Assist Village staff with the planned public engagement effort, including flyer creation and 

distribution. 

f. Prepare permit applications for EGLE Wetland/JPA, Oakland County Soil Erosion Control, 

and RCOC ROW permits (as required). 

g. HRC will prepare and provide the bid package (final maps, details, specifications, Engineer’s 

estimate, and other bid documents, as required) and assist with advertising for bidding. 

 

2. Evaluate the Proposals and Qualifications of the Applicants:  HRC and the Village’s Administrator will 

assist in the bidding process, review the submittals, check references, and make recommendation for 

award to the Village Council.  HRC would complete this task within two (2) to three (3) weeks of the 

submittals at a cost not to exceed $3,200.  Should pre-award interviews or facility visits be necessary, 

this cost would be additional. 

 

3. Village Council Meetings and Preparation of Contract Documents:  After HRC and the Village’s 

Administrator have evaluated all Applicants and made their recommendation, HRC will assist the 

Village in documenting the process.  In addition, HRC would attend the Village Council Meeting for 

the award and prepare the Contract Documents.  This task would be done at a cost not to exceed $1,500 

and be completed within one (1) to two (2) weeks of the Council meeting discussed above. 

 

In addition to the above services for preparation of the RFPs, HRC will provide the following detailed tasks 

during the design and project planning stages. 

 

1. HRC’s GIS Department will assign a unique identification number to each structure and pipe drawn in 

the GIS which will serve as the link to the remaining attributes and any future inspection data collected 

by the Village.  It is important that all pipes and structures be assigned an ID prior to any inspection or 

CCTV work being completed.  This task would be included in the cost for preparation of the RFP’s, as 

described above. 

 

2. HRC will perform storm manhole and catch basin inspections of the storm sewer system for the entire 



 

 

 

 

Y:\202107\20210745\06_Corrs\Proposal\20210806_Proposal_StWMaintProgram.docx 

Village Council/Mr. Roger Fraser 
August 6, 2021 

HRC Job Number 20210745 
Page 4 of 5 

 

Village using Manhole Assessment Certification Program (MACP) ratings.  The selected contractor 

will be responsible for rehabilitation of storm structures, as per HRC’s recommendations.  As far as the 

estimated cost for this task, as mentioned earlier, until we receive more detail from Nowak & Fraus, 

our office’s estimated cost would be approximately $11,500 for inspection of the approximate 130 

known structures.  

 

Design Engineering Fees: 

 

Based on the services described herein, we estimate the total design engineering fees to be as follows: 

 

Task 1 – Prepare the Request for Proposals (RFP) Bid Package $     8,500 

Task 2 – Evaluate the Proposals and Qualifications of the Applicants $     3,200 

Task 3 – Village Council Meetings and Preparation of Contract Documents $     1,500 

Task 4 – Storm Manhole and Catch Basin Inspection $   11,500 

Total Not-to-Exceed Fee $   24,700 

 

Estimated Construction Costs: 

 

Estimated construction costs to clean, inspect, televise, and rehabilitate the storm system for the entire Village, 

including the downtown area and Carol Street Drain, would be as follows.  Note that a 10% contingency is 

included in the costs below. 

 

Village-Wide Summary (includes Downtown/Carol Drain): 

 

Cleaning of Village-owned Storm Manholes and Catch Basins $     93,060 

Televising and Cleaning of Village-owned Storm Sewer Pipes $   102,578 

Total Estimated Construction Cost – Village-Wide Cleaning $   195,638 

 

Downtown Area/Carol Street Drain Summary: 

 

Cleaning of Village-owned Storm Manholes and Catch Basins $     36,850 

Televising and Cleaning of Village-owned Storm Sewer Pipes $     58,388 

Total Estimated Construction Cost – Downtown/Carol Drain Cleaning $     95,238 

 

Further, the estimated construction cost would be approximately $250,000 to $300,000 (assuming 

approximately half of the pipes need lining or replacement) for rehabilitation of the structures (grouting, 

pointing) and pipes (lining or replacement).  These costs will be refined once the structure and pipe inspections 

are complete. 

 

Clarifications: 

 

1. Construction Engineering services are not included in this proposal and will be outlined after the bid 

opening.  HRC will provide an additional proposal to include construction engineering, construction 

administration, materials testing (if needed), progress meetings, record drawing preparation, and full-

time construction observation. 

 

2. Grading easement acquisition services are not included in this proposal but can be provided on a time 

and material basis if needed. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Y:\202107\20210745\06_Corrs\Proposal\20210806_Proposal_StWMaintProgram.docx 

Village Council/Mr. Roger Fraser 
August 6, 2021 

HRC Job Number 20210745 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Summary: 

 

In summary, we estimate the overall design engineering budget to develop the Request for Proposal (RFP) for 

a Storm Sewer Maintenance Services Contract, with the first year’s work being the storm system in the 

downtown area and Carol Street Drain, to be a cost not to exceed $24,700.  This does not include construction 

engineering costs which HRC will provide after bidding upon the Village’s request.  This also does not include 

an evaluation of current sewer conditions or establishing priority lists for the actual work to be performed.  HRC 

may also will provide a cost estimate for that as requested. 

 

We believe this is the most cost-effective way to proceed with annual sewer maintenance work.  At this time, 

we are requesting your authorization to proceed in this manner.  We anticipate that the preparation of the Sewer 

Maintenance Services Contractor RFP’s and all the associated documents mentioned herein as well as the bid 

and recommendation for award of a contractor can be completed prior to the end of summer, 2021 so that the 

sewer investigations could begin in Fall, 2021, if necessary.  We are available to discuss this matter in more 

detail should you so desire.   

 

Very truly yours, Accepted By: 

 

HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC. Village of Franklin 

  

 

 

James F. Burton, P.E. Signature:  ________________________  

Vice President  

  

 Written Name:  ____________________  

 

Edward Zmich  

Project Manager Title:  _____________________________  

 

EDZ/edz 

 Dated:  ____________________________     

pc: Village of Franklin; Heather Mydloski  

 HRC; Business Office, File 







 

Delhi Township 
2101 Aurelius Rd. 
Suite 2A 
Holt, MI 48842 
517-694-7760 

Detroit 
535 Griswold St. 
Buhl Building, Ste 1650 
Detroit, MI 48226 
313-965-3330 

Grand Rapids 
1925 Breton Road SE  
Suite 100 
Grand Rapids, MI 49506 
616-454-4286 

Howell 
105 W. Grand River 
Howell, MI 48843 
517-552-9199 

Jackson 
401 S. Mechanic St. 
Suite B 
Jackson, MI 49201 
517-292-1295 

Kalamazoo 
834 King Highway 
Suite 107 
Kalamazoo, MI 49001 
269-665-2005 

Lansing 
215 S. Washington SQ 
Suite D 
Lansing, MI 48933 
517-292-1488 

Y:\202110\20211074\04_Design\Final\Bidding\Bid_Docs\BidRec_20211074.docx 

MAILING: PO Box 824 
Bloomfield Hills, MI  48303-0824 
 
SHIPPING: 555 Hulet Drive 
Bloomfield Hills, MI  48302-0360 
 
PHONE: 248-454-6300 
WEBSITE:  hrcengr.com 

December 10, 2021 
 
Village of Franklin 
32325 Franklin Rd. 
Franklin, MI 48025 
 
Attn: Mr. Roger Fraser, Village Administrator 
 
Re: Recommendation for Award and Bid Tabulation    HRC Job No. 20211074.09
 Carol Street Drain Investigation  
 
Dear Mr. Fraser: 
 
We have reviewed the bids received on Thursday, December 9, 2021 for the Carol Street Drain Investigation 
project and have found them to be in order. There were two (2) bids received.  The low bidder was Pipetek 
Infrastructure Services of Livonia, Michigan with a Bid of $21,555.00.  The Engineer’s Estimate for the project 
was $39,985.00.  
 
The project consists of televising, cleaning and assessment of the Carol Street drain, beginning at the inlet on 
the east end of Irving Road, through the Franklin Community Association (FCA) field, and across Franklin Rd 
to the outlet at Carol Street and Bowden Ln, where it discharges into the Franklin Branch of the Rouge. The 
Carol Street Drain consists of 30” and 36” diameter reinforced concrete pipe, while the project also includes 
televising, cleaning and assessment of the lateral sewers that discharge into the Carol Street Drain and range 
from 8” to 24”. 
 
In order to streamline the bidding process, five (5) qualified contractors were invited to bid on the project in 
lieu of a public bid. All invited contractors have performed successfully on previous projects for this office.   
 
On the basis of the above, this office recommends award of the Carol Street Drain Investigation project to 
Pipetek Infrastructure Services of Livonia, Michigan, with a total estimated cost of $21,555.00, subject to the 
submission of the necessary bonds and insurance.  We recommend that an additional 10% contingency 
($2,155.50) be added to the low bid amount.  Further, the total construction engineering/administration budget 
would be a not-to-exceed maximum of $3,500.00. This cost includes part-time construction observation by 
HRC. If full-time observation is required, we will submit a revised budget upon request. Further, HRC will 
review the sewer videos for completeness and clear views; however, analysis and recommendations for future 
improvements are not included in the budget at this time. 
 
Based on the above, the total budget for the Carol Street Drain Investigation, including costs for contingencies 
and construction engineering, is a not-to-exceed maximum of $27,210.50.  If you have any questions or 
comments or require any additional information, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Y:\202110\20211074\04_Design\Final\Bidding\Bid_Docs\BidRec_20211074.docx 

Mr. Roger Fraser 
 December 10, 2021 

HRC Job Number 20211074 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Very truly yours, 
 
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC. 
 

 
Edward Zmich 
Project Engineer 
 
EDZ/mas 
Attachment: Bid Tabulation 
 
pc: Village of Franklin; Heather Mydloski 
 HRC; J. Burton, M. Stark, B. Defrain, File 



BID TABULATION
CAROL STREET DRAIN SEWER INVESTIGATION
VILLAGE OF FRANKLIN
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Item Quantity Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost

1. Mobilization (Max 5%) 1 LS 1,600.00$      1,600.00$                1,000.00$      1,000.00$              2,000.00$      2,000.00$              
2. Televise and Clean, 8" Storm Sewer 400 Lft 4.00$             1,600.00$                2.50$             1,000.00$              4.50$             1,800.00$              
3. Heavy Cleaning, 8" Storm Sewer (if needed) 50 Lft 1.50$             75.00$                     0.50$             25.00$                   4.50$             225.00$                 
4. Televise and Clean, 12" Storm Sewer 230 Lft 6.00$             1,380.00$                3.00$             690.00$                 4.50$             1,035.00$              
5. Heavy Cleaning, 12" Storm Sewer(if needed) 50 Lft 2.00$             100.00$                   0.50$             25.00$                   4.50$             225.00$                 
6. Televise and Clean, 24" Storm Sewer 200 Lft 10.00$           2,000.00$                3.25$             650.00$                 7.50$             1,500.00$              
7. Heavy Cleaning, 24" Storm Sewer (if needed) 50 Lft 3.00$             150.00$                   0.50$             25.00$                   7.50$             375.00$                 
8. Televise and Clean, 30" Storm Sewer 915 Lft 12.00$           10,980.00$              5.00$             4,575.00$              7.50$             6,862.50$              
9. Heavy Cleaning, 30" Storm Sewer (if needed) 100 Lft 4.00$             400.00$                   0.75$             75.00$                   7.50$             750.00$                 
10. Televise and Clean, 36" Storm Sewer 860 Lft 15.00$           12,900.00$              6.50$             5,590.00$              7.50$             6,450.00$              
11. Heavy Cleaning, 36" Storm Sewer (if needed) 100 Lft 5.00$             500.00$                   1.00$             100.00$                 7.50$             750.00$                 
12. Maintaining Traffic 1 LS 2,500.00$      2,500.00$                1,500.00$      1,500.00$              5,000.00$      5,000.00$              
13. Restoration 1 LS 2,000.00$      2,000.00$                2,500.00$      2,500.00$              5,000.00$      5,000.00$              
43. Observation Crew Days _____ Days @ $760 5 3,800.00$                5 3,800.00$              14 10,640.00$            

Total 39,985.00$              21,555.00$            42,612.50$            

ENGINEER:
Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc.
555 Hulet Drive
P.O. Box 824
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48083-0824

12119 Levan Rd
Livonia, MI 48150

(734) 921-3054

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc.
555 Hulet Drive

P.O. Box 824
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48083-0824

Inland Waters Pollution ControlPipetek Infrastructure Services
4086 Michigan Ave

Detroit, MI 48210
(313) 899-3014

Y:\202110\20211074\04_Design\Final\Bidding\Bid_Docs\BidTab_20211074.xlsx

Page 1
12/9/2021






























































































































































	3-February 14, 2022 Regualr Council Agenda
	4-A-December 13, 2021 Regualr Council Minutes
	4-B-December 16, 2021 Special Council Minutes
	5-2022 Proclamation for Village Council President Pro-Tem Brian Gordon.docx
	5-Albert Ludwig Application
	5-Albert Ludwig Cover Letter
	5-Albert Ludwig Resume
	5-David Goldberg Council Application
	5-David Goldberg Email
	5-David Goldberg's Resume (01-22)
	5-Linda Hiller Novak-Application
	5-Linda Hiller Novak-Resume
	7-A-POLICE-December 2021 Monthly Report
	7-A-POLICE-Monthly January 2022
	7-B-FIRE-Chief Report 12-21
	7-B-FIRE-Report 01-2021
	8-Bill list-12-10-2021 to 02-10-2022
	8-Check Disbursement Report12-10-2021 to 02-10-2022
	9-D-Main Street Memo
	10-Public Hearing-VC 02-14-2022
	11-A-Appointment of Village Clerk
	11-A-Dana Hughes Resume
	11-D-MemoQuoteBodyCameras2022
	11-E-2022 Proclamation for Sergeant Mark Dyjewski
	11-F-2022 Village Council Resolution - Irving Trail Grant Application 02.14.2022
	11-F-HRC-Application Guidance
	20220114_Grant_Submitted
	TAB 1: APPLICANT INFORMATION
	Name of City, Village or Township  - Village of Franklin
	Primary Grant Administrator Contact Information – Roger W. Fraser, Village Administrator
	Project Partners
	Grant Type - Development Grant Program (construction)
	TAB 2: FINANCIAL INFORMATION
	Grant Match and Project Costs – 25% Match Proposed
	Trailways Grant Program
	Project Budget -$66,000 total - $49.5k grant and $16.5 k match
	TAB 3: PROJECT DETAILS
	Project Identification in Planning Documents (100 word max)
	Public Engagement/Support (250 word max)
	Sustainability (250 word max)
	Long-Term Maintenance (100 word max)
	ADA Compliance/Universal Accessibility (250 word max)
	Project Dates
	Site Control
	Ease of Access
	Certified Resolution – forth coming. Draft Resolution for February 14, 2022 attached.
	Final Report & Reimbursement - Understood
	Uploads Required:
	Certified Resolution - – forth coming. Draft Resolution for February 14, 2022 attached.
	Optional:

	Franklin_Path_2
	2022 VOF-OCPR-Trailways Grant Program
	Council Resolution - Irvin Trail Grant Application 02.14.2022
	Location map.03pdf
	Location map
	Trail_Map

	11-F-Memo to Council from Roger Fraser - OCPR Grant Program - Traileways Grant Program
	11-G-Franklin Audit 6-30-21
	11-H-Plante Moran-Streetscape Review Incl. Vendor List - 12-31-21 FINAL 02.09.2020
	11-H-Resolution - FY2021-22 Budget Update 02.14.2022
	11-I-2022 BYOD Civic Event Permit
	CIVIC EVENTS PERMIT REVISED 05052021
	Road Banner Policy REVISED 06232021

	11-J-20210806_Proposal_StWMaintProgram
	11-K-HRC-Carol Street-BidRec_20211074
	13-A-Contract-Command Officers Association of Michigan
	13-A-Contract-Police Officers Association of Michigan
	13-B-Memorandum-Act 88 Reciprocal Retirement Act

	Text2: Bring Your Own Dog
	Text1: Bloomfield Hills High School
	Text3: Mollie Weiner
	Text4: Mollie Weiner
	Text5: 2482286676
	Email: byodogteam@gmail.com
	Text6: May 15th, 2022
	Text8: Bring Your Own Dog is a community engagement event for citizens across Oakland County. All of the profits from this event will go towards a local dog charity. This is our 6th annual event, and we would love to continue to host it at Franklin Municipal Park on May 15th, 2022. At this event we invite sponsors to come and advertise thier businesses and we provide many fun activities for dogs and their humans including raffles, a dog no-leash zone, and many more! 
	Text9: The Franklin Municipal Park and/or Church
	Dropdown17: [No]
	Dropdown18: [No]
	Dropdown19: [Not Required]
	Dropdown21: [No]
	Dropdown22: [Select Option]
	Dropdown23: [No]
	Dropdown24: [Yes]
	Expected Number of Participants: 300
	Dropdown25: [No]
	Text26: 
	Dropdown27: [Select Option]
	Text10: Erin Cervi
	Date: 1/19/22
	Text7: Please email completed application to: clerk@franklin.mi.us
	undefined: 
	undefined_2: 
	undefined_3: 
	undefined_4: 
	undefined_5: 
	undefined_6: 
	undefined_7: 
	undefined_8: 
	undefined_9: 
	undefined_10: 
	WIND SLITS: 
	undefined_11: 
	undefined_12: 
	undefined_13: 
	G R O M E TRow1: 
	G R O M E TRow1_2: 
	G R O M E TRow2: 
	G R O M E TRow2_2: 


